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Financial Highlights
IR

2010 2009 %
—E-ZF —EENEF Increase/
US$'million US$'million (Decrease)
BHEETR EX-E # O
Operating Results LR
Revenue U %5 93.5 195.8 (52.2)
EBITDA BASXH BB HER
BEEHRT R A 2.7 5.6 (51.8)
Operating profit before investment BRI EWE - EHEBRRREE
gains, restructuring costs and S H AT Z & T
impairment charges 3.2 47 (31.9)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHM S (BE) 5.9 (12.3) N/A i@
Financial Position B RRN,
Total assets BEHRE 61.1 79.7 (23.3)
Cash reserves e 21.0 23.7 (11.4)
Net assets BEFE 41.1 39.0 5.4
Financial Ratio B F& b 3=
Current ratio (Times) TEhEE =R () 1.8 1.3 38.5
Gearing ratio (%) BREELE (%) - - N/A i@ A
Dividends gy
Interim dividend per share (HK cent) TR ERRL S (BL) 0.75 - N/A i@ A
Final dividend per share (HK cent) FRRER S GBI 0.75 2.2 (65.9)
Special dividend per share (HK cents) AR FEFRIBLE (BL) 6.00 - N/A i A
Full year dividend per share (HK cents) &2 FIE GBIL) 7.50 2.2 240.9

Breakdown of Revenue by Nature
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| am happy to report that the Group has
returned to profitability and our quest
for new business opportunities and new

customers has taken a positive turn.
AARRBEAEBMEEERFES ROVBFERRTEFHED
EESER-

Chairman's Statement
EEREE

On behalf of the board of directors (“Board”), | present the results of Linmark Group
Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the "Group” or “Linmark") for the year
ended 30 April 2010.

Despite the fact that 2009 was yet again a very difficult year that saw another decline in
shipment volume, | am happy to report that the Group has returned to profitability after
two consecutive years of substantial losses.

We have finally come to terms with our consumer electronics division in the United
Kingdom ("UK") that went into liquidation in January 2010 thus eliminating the non-
profitable part of the organisation.

As expected, order volumes further decreased in 2009/2010 as our customers' sales were
still registering overall declines thus forcing them to maintain reduced inventories. This
negative trend seems to be ending as we are seeing positive signs of recovery and growing
order bookings for the months to come.

The hard work of our teams across Asia and a strong and continuous focus on reducing
expenses have enabled the Group to maintain its high level of service to the customers
while navigating away from the loss-making zone. Although the Group's bottom line
fell short of our expectation, we have cemented our foundation for future growth and
profitability.
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Chairman's Statement
FEHRES

Our quest for new business opportunities and new customers has taken a positive turn in

the second half of the fiscal year and we have succeeded in securing new alliances with
retailers and distributors across the United States (“US"), Europe and Australia. It is very
encouraging to note that there are several additional opportunities already at an advanced
stage of negotiation. While we understand that it may take time to get the full benefits of
such new alliances in the first year, it is certainly a strong factor of top and bottom line
growth in the mid to long term.

In closing, | would like once again to express my sincere gratitude to the members of the
Board for their continued guidance and support and to our shareholders for their steady

support to the Group. | would also like to thank the management team led by our CEO Mr.
Michel BOURLON and the staff for their contribution to the success of the Group.

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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We have refocused our teams and activities
on our core competencies, we have returned
to profitability and our cash position
remains solid. The initiative to acquire new
customers started to bear fruit which is
certainly a strong factor of top and bottom

line growth in the mid to long term.

EMECEFMNEETRREBRNEREBNLS NEQBERIENL
HEERRNRER N  BANEFNBIEHERR EFERTRYE
FENRBNERAOBAB D -

Report of the Chief Executive Officer
THRARBRES

Business Review

Overview

For the year ended 30 April 2010, shipment value amounted to approximately US$319.0
million (equivalent to HK$2,488.2 million), down by approximately 35.8% compared to
approximately US$496.9 million (equivalent to HK$3,875.8 million) last year. Revenue
decreased by approximately 52.2% to approximately US$93.5 million (equivalent to
HK$729.3 million). The drop in both shipment volume and revenue were mainly affected
by the global economic slowdown and the drastic decline of business of the Group's UK
electronics division, Linmark Electronics Limited (“LEL"). LEL was put in administration on
28 July 2009 and moved to creditors' voluntary liquidation on 25 January 2010.

The Group reported a profit after tax of approximately US$5.9 million (equivalent to
HK$46.0 million) for the year ended 30 April 2010, against a loss of approximately
US$12.3 million (equivalent to HK$95.9 million) last year. The profit for the year under
review included non-cash items of approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3
million) gain on liquidation of LEL and approximately US$1.0 million (equivalent to
HK$7.8 million) exchange loss arose from deregistration of overseas branches. The loss
for last year was mainly attributable to non-cash items of approximately US$13.1 million
(equivalent to HK$102.2 million), representing the impairment losses on goodwill, patents
and trademarks as compared to no impairment this year.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 30 April 2010 fell by approximately
22.8% to approximately US$25.6 million (equivalent to HK$199.7 million) as compared
with last year.

Although signs of economic recovery have appeared towards the end of the year, the
financial year under review was still preponderantly dominated by a difficult retail
climate that constrained the majority of the Group's core customers to keep low levels
of inventory and maintain high pressure on keeping prices low. Both initiatives had a
negative impact on shipment volume and revenue, aggravated by the separation of LEL
early in the financial year.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
THRBRESE

Management's focus remained clearly on reducing operating
expenses to compensate for the loss in volume, while
ensuring a high level of service that is essential to the
Group's customers. As announced mid-year, the decision of
a key customer in North America to not renew their agency
agreement with the Group did not have a serious impact
on shipment volume during the year under review, but the
necessary restructuring and retrenchment efforts had an
adverse impact on our cost and profitability.

On a positive note, many customers that recognised the
Group's efforts and support in keeping them competitive
increased their business volume with the Group. This was
particularly true with our mail order customers and some of
our brand partners in the US. The order booking of many core
customers started to show signs of improvement towards the
end of the year under review and its effects will be felt in the
year ending 30 April 2011.

Segmental Analysis

The table below shows the shipment value to different markets
during the year under review as compared to amounts in the
previous year:

Shipment value
For the year ended 30 April

2010 2009

US$' million US$' million

North America 177.9 256.6
Europe 67.9 139.5
Others 73.2 100.8
Total 319.0 496.9

During the year under review, shipment to North America
decreased by approximately 30.7% to approximately US$177.9
million (equivalent to HK$1,387.6 million). North America
is at present the largest market of the Group, contributing
approximately 55.8% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipment to Europe decreased by 51.3% to approximately
US$67.9 million (equivalent to HK$529.6 million) which was
largely due to the drop in sales of the electronics division in
the UK. Shipment to Europe now accounts for approximately
21.3% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipment grouped under "Others”, comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, amounted to
approximately US$73.2 million (equivalent to HK$571.0
million).

Indian Tax Case

Following the announcement of the Company dated 22
February 2007 relating to an Indian tax case, in March 2008,
the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) (“CITA") of India
issued an order that the India Liaison Office of a subsidiary
of the Company is liable to tax in India. Total tax payment
demanded by the Director of Income Tax of India in respect
of tax assessment years 1999/2000 to 2005/2006 amounted
to approximately US$835,000 (equivalent to HK$6,513,000)
which has already been paid in prior years. The Group has since
lodged appeals to the relevant tax authorities in India to object
to the assessments that the India Liaison Office has a taxable
presence in India.

In March 2010, Assessing Office of Indian Tax Authority issued
a penalty order of approximately US$473,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,689,000) to the Group. An appeal has been filed before
CITA and Income Tax Appellate Tribunal respectively and both
are now pending for hearing. Under the advice of the Group's
tax adviser, the Group is of the view that there are sufficient
grounds for pursuing the appeals and therefore, no provision
has been made in the financial statements as at 30 April 2010
in this respect.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
THRBRESE

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash and
cash equivalents of approximately US$21.0 million (equivalent
to HK$163.8 million) as at 30 April 2010. In addition, the Group
has total banking facilities of approximately US$32.9 million
(equivalent to HK$256.6 million) including borrowing facilities
of approximately US$0.3 million (equivalent to HK$2.3 million)
as at 30 April 2010.

The Group has a current ratio of 1.8 and a gearing ratio of
zero, based on no interest-bearing borrowings and total equity
of approximately US$41.1 million (equivalent to HK$320.6
million) as at 30 April 2010. There has not been any material
change in the Group's borrowings since 30 April 2010.

Trade receivables decreased from approximately US$18.2
million (equivalent to HK$142.0 million) as at 30 April 2009
to approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3
million) as at 30 April 2010. Trade receivables aged over
90 days, which amounted to approximately US$1.4 million
(equivalent to HK$10.9 million), are being carefully monitored
by management. Approximately US$1.2 million (equivalent
to HK$9.4 million) of these balances was covered by the
impairment.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2010 was
approximately US$41.1 million (equivalent to HK$320.6
million).

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30 April
2010 and there has been no material change since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.

Remuneration Policy and Staff Development
Scheme

As at 30 April 2010, the Group had 510 staff. The total staff
costs for the year under review amounted to approximately
US$17.8 million (equivalent to HK$138.8 million) (2009:
US$21.3 million (equivalent to HK$166.1 million)). The Group
offers competitive remuneration schemes to its employees
based on industry practices, individual and the Group's
performance. In addition, share options and discretionary
bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based on both the
Group's as well as individual performance.

Creditors' Voluntary Liquidation of LEL

On 28 July 2009, LEL, a company incorporated in the UK and a
60% subsidiary of the Company, filed a notice of appointment
of administrators in the UK, pursuant to which joint
administrators ("Administrators") of LEL ("Appointment”) were
appointed pursuant to paragraph 22 of Schedule B1 to the
Insolvency Act 1986 of the UK. The Appointment brings into
effect a statutory moratorium which prevents any legal action
by the creditors of LEL, so that the Administrators can effect
the reorganisation of LEL and/or the orderly realisation of its
assets for the benefit of creditors. Upon the Appointment,
the legal control of business of LEL was transferred from the
directors of LEL to the Administrators. Since then, the Company
has lost control over the financial and operating policies of LEL
and therefore, the financial results of LEL have ceased to be
consolidated with those of the Group upon the Appointment.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 27
January 2010, according to the Administrators, on 25 January
2010 (UK time), LEL moved from Administration to creditors'
voluntary liquidation (“Liquidation”) and the Administrators
were appointed the liquidators (“Liquidators") pursuant to
paragraph 83 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 of the
UK and as approved by the creditors of LEL.

Linmark Group Limited annual report 2010
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer
THRBRESE

The Liquidators will adjudicate creditor claims, following which
they anticipate paying a dividend to creditors of LEL. The level
of dividend will not be known until all creditor claims have
been agreed, asset realisations finalised and the costs of the
Liquidation provided for. Following this process, the Liquidators
will take steps to dissolve LEL.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 31 October 2009, the unaudited total net
liabilities of LEL included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group amounted to approximately
US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million). Upon the
commencement of the Liquidation, a non-cash profit of
approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement of the
Group as a gain on liquidation of a subsidiary. Save for the
gain on liquidation of a subsidiary as mentioned above and
the dividend payment from LEL (the quantum of which, if
any, is uncertain), at present, the Board does not expect the
Liquidation to have any other material impact on the Group.

Prospects

The initiative to acquire new customers that management
launched in the second half of the year under review started to
bear fruit and several sourcing partnership agreements with US
and European retailers, brands and distributors were concluded
prior to the year end. Several other opportunities are still in
the pipeline and management remains optimistic that the
additional business generated, combined with expected organic
growth of existing customers will enable the Group to not
only make up for the lost volume from the key North American
customer that left but will also help regain market share.

The first half of the next fiscal year will remain challenging
with a cocktail of unfavorable economic indicators rocking
the sourcing world: soaring cotton prices, labour shortage and
labour wage increases in China, weaker European currencies
and a foreseeable appreciation of the RMB. However, the
Group's network of offices in Asia and its renowned ability to
react quickly to changing market conditions are assets that
management will put at the disposal of its newly extended
customer base to secure a healthy development. The Group's
cash position remains strong and will support the growing
portfolio of customers.

Based on the current assessment, management maintains
an overall positive view on the Group's performance for the
next fiscal year and is optimistic about the Group's long term
prospects.

Michel BOURLON
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEEBER

WANG Lu Yen E#:E Michel BOURLON

Executive directors

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 56, is an executive director and the chairman of the
Company and is presently responsible for the Group's corporate and strategy
planning. He was appointed the acting chief executive officer of the Company
for the period from August 2008 to January 2009. Mr. Wang joined the Group in
1998 as chairman. He is a co-founder, an executive director and chairman of Roly
International Holdings Ltd. (“Roly International”), the indirect holding company of
the Company which was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
from 1996 to 2007, since 2000. Mr. Wang was the chairman and an executive
director of Byford International Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock
Exchange”), from 2004 to 2007.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the trading and distribution business.
Mr. Wang is a vice-chairman of China Association for Middle and Small Commercial
Enterprises, a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association, a member of
Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a member of The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Central Policy Unit Pan-Pearl River
Delta Panel, the vice-chairman of China Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce, a member of Hong Kong Association for the Promotion of Peaceful
Reunification of China, a honorary court member of The Hong Kong Baptist
University, a member of Hong Kong/Taiwan Business Cooperation Committee,
the honorary chairman of Taiwan Business Association (Hong Kong) Limited, the
chairman of the Soochow Management Academic Foundation of Soochow University
and a director of the Taiwan Design Center. Mr. Wang was awarded the Directors
of The Year Awards 2005 hosted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Soochow University, Taiwan
and an EMBA degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, the
People's Republic of China ("PRC").

Mr. Michel BOURLON, aged 51, has been an executive director and the chief
executive officer of the Company since 12 January 2009. Mr. Bourlon has 25 years
of senior management experience in the sourcing industry. His sector experience
includes sourcing both apparel and hardgoods throughout the Asia Pacific region
for global retailers. From March 2004 to January 2009, he was executive vice
president of Charming Shoppes Inc., a specialty apparel retailer in the United
States of America ("US"), overseeing the sourcing division. Prior to that, he was the
managing director of the regional buying office in Asia of Eddie Bauer Inc. (US)
from 1997 to 2004 and vice president of sourcing of Otto Versand Gmbh (Germany)
from 1992 to 1997. He holds a Master's degree in Economics and Foreign Languages
Applied to International Trade from the University of Valenciennes and Hainaut
Cambresis in France.
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WONG Wai Ming =128

KHOO Kim Cheng EB$5 5

Executive directors (Continued)

Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng, aged 59, has been an executive director of the Company
since 2002. He has also been an executive director and the chief financial officer
of Roly International since 1995. Currently, Mr. Khoo is responsible for the
Group's corporate and financial matters. He has extensive experience in corporate
finance and financial management industry. Mr. Knoo holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas, the US. He
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in the US and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Non-executive director

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 52, is a non-executive director of the Company. Mr.
Wong has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since it
was listed in 2002 and was redesignated as an executive director of the Company
in 2005 and then further redesignated as a non-executive director of the Company
in 2007. Mr. Wong has been the chief financial officer and senior vice president of
Lenovo Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since July 2007. He is also an independent non-executive director of I.T Limited and
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly known as China Unicom Limited), all
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was a non-
executive director of Kingsoft Corporation Limited, which shares are also listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from April 2007 to March 2010. Mr.
Wong was an executive director and chief executive officer of Roly International
from 2005 to 2007. He was previously an investment banker with over 16 years
of experience in investment banking business in Greater China. Mr. Wong is a
chartered accountant of the UK and an associate member of the HKICPA. He holds
a Bachelor's degree of Science (with Honours) in Management Sciences from The
Victoria University of Manchester, the UK.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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WANG Arthur Minshiang T &% TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius #Z47

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 49, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2002. Mr. Wang is also the chief executive officer
of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ listed online entertainment and game provider.
Previously, Mr. Wang was a co-founder and executive director of KGI Asia Limited,
the investment banking arm of the Koos Group of Taiwan. Mr. Wang also serves on
the board of directors of several finance and technology companies in the region
and was previously a member of the board of Softbank Investment International
(Strategic) Limited (now known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang received his
Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law School and practised corporate and securities
law in Hong Kong and New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of California at Los Angeles, the US.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2005. Mr. Tse is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, and the HKICPA. Mr. Tse is a past president
and the current chairman of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG
in 1976, became a partner in 1984 and retired in March 2003. Mr. Tse was a non-
executive chairman of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a member of the KPMG
China advisory board from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is currently an independent non-
executive director of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, CNOOC Limited, China Telecom
Corporation Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited, all
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tse was an independent non-
executive director of China Construction Bank Corporation, which shares are also
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from November 2004 to June
2010. Mr. Tse is also a member of the International Advisory Council of the People's
Municipal Government of Wuhan. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, aged 63, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since May 2008. He became the chief executive
officer of Freemans Grattan Holdings of Otto Group in July 2008. From 1994 to
2007, he was managing director of Otto International Asia and was responsible for
all of its sourcing offices and trading companies in the Asia Pacific region. Prior
to that, he worked his way through different aspects of the garment industry for
22 years in South Africa. Having been managing director for the manufacturing
subsidiary of a major retailer in South Africa and a board member of such retailer
for 4 years, he joined a large American apparel manufacturer in Hong Kong in 1992.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Garment Engineering received from a college in
Netherlands.
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Senior management

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 40, has been the chief financial officer of
the Group since January 2006 and oversees the finance, accounting, shipping and
investor relations functions of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Wong was the head
of corporate development department of Roly International primarily responsible
for Roly International and the Group's corporate development, mergers and
acquisitions and investor relations activities. Before joining Roly International in
2000, he had worked at several major international financial institutions where he
gained extensive experience in finance and banking. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree in finance from Boston University, the US, and a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of British Columbia, Canada.

Mr. Jong LEE, aged 42, has been the chief development and information officer
of the Group since May 2009 and is responsible for corporate and business
development; information systems and services and the Group's electronics,
licensing and premiums businesses. Before that, he served the Group as its chief
operating officer. Prior to joining the Group in September 2008, he co-founded
and served as managing partner of the Sugarloaf Group, a regional private equity,
management and advisory firm, from September 2004 to August 2008. Prior to that,
he was a vice president with H&Q Asia Pacific investing in and managing portfolio
companies in China, Japan, Korea and the US from May 2001 to August 2004. Prior
to 2001, he was a technology investment banker with UBS and an attorney with
Simpson Thacher & Bartlett in New York. He has 15 years of substantive experience
in principal investment, executive management, investment banking, and corporate
law in the US, Japan, South Korea and Greater China in the services, industrial, real-
estate, technology and media sectors. He received a Juris Doctorate degree from
Columbia University and Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of Applied Science degrees
from the University of Pennsylvania, the US.

Mr. Arthur Etienne Marie PRUIJT, aged 43, has been the senior vice president of
quality and compliance since March 2009. Before that, Mr. Pruijt served the Group
as the general manager of the offices in Thailand and Bangladesh, the general
manager of the Group's European accounts and the senior vice president of group
operations. Prior to joining the Group, he worked as an account manager for a
Dutch buying agency in Indonesia from 1993 to 1997 and as general manager for
an lItalian buying agency from 1997 to 2005. Mr. Pruijt has extensive experience
in merchandising and quality control as well as general management including
financing, budgeting and human resources.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 42, is the company secretary of the Company
and Roly International. Ms. Cheung joined a subsidiary of Roly International in 1997
as an assistant company secretary. She has over 15 years of company secretarial
experience gained in listed companies. Ms. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Accountancy and is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the UK.
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Corporate Governance Report
NAEEGHME

The Company has adopted most of the Code Provisions ("Code
Provisions") as stated in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules")
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,
as the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) of the Company
and the Board is committed to complying with the Code to the extent
that the directors consider it is applicable to the Company and practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an effective
Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence policy, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company fully complied with the
Code Provisions of the Code, save for the modifications made to Code
Provision B.1.3, details of which are explained below.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
make decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
powers in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for directors' and officers' liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.
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Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises seven directors in total, with three
executive directors, one non-executive director and three independent
non-executive directors. The directors of the Company during the year
under review and up to the date of this report were as follows:
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Name of Directors Positions

EEHA B

WANG Lu Yen Chairman and executive director
F 12 FEFITES

Michel BOURLON
THRABZRATES

KHOO Kim Cheng Executive director

Chief executive officer and executive director

Ef 885N HITES

WONG Wai Ming Non-executive director

={ZH EHITES

Mark HSU Non-executive director (resigned with effect from 18 January 2010)
(R385 FRITES (FEHZZE—ZF—A+/\BRBER

WANG Arthur Minshiang
T

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
b

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Independent non-executive director

BIUIFRITEF

Independent non-executive director

BIYFNTES

Independent non-executive director

BIUIFRITES

The list of directors by category is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. None of the members of the Board is related to one

another.
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During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency
may be engaged to assist in the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

The resignation of Mr. Mark HSU as non-executive director and
Investment Committee member with effect from 18 January 2010 was
noted by the Board.
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Each of Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng, being an executive
director, has entered into a service contract with the Company with an
initial term of three years from May 2002 and has continued thereafter
until terminated by either party by not less than six months' notice
in writing. Mr. Michel BOURLON and the Company have entered into
an employment agreement pursuant to which Mr. Bourlon has been
appointed as chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 12 January
2009. Such term will be renewed automatically for one year on each
anniversary of the third anniversary date (i.e. 12 January 2012) of the
hire date until terminated by either party by serving at least 60 days'
notice (prior to the date of automatic renewal for a further one year
term) or by 12 months' notice or making payment in lieu (on other
occasions).

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, a non-executive director, has been appointed for
a term of two years under a letter of appointment from 5 July 2007 and
has continued thereafter until terminated by either party by serving at
least one month's notice in writing.

Each of the three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years upon expiry. The appointments may be terminated by
the independent non-executive directors by serving not less than one
month's notice in writing.

The Company's bye-laws provide that all directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Company's bye-laws also allow for removal of a director by an
ordinary resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company

on or about 28 July 2010 will contain detailed information of the
directors standing for re-election.
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Training for directors

Each newly appointed director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board meetings

Number of meetings and directors' attendance

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies, policies and budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2010, the Board met five times mainly for
considering and approving the audited final results for the year ended 30
April 2009, unaudited results for the three months ended 31 July 2009,
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 31 October 2009,
unaudited results for the nine months ended 31 January 2010, budget
of the Group for the year ending 30 April 2011, a proposed disposal of
interest in a UK subsidiary and dissolution of Strategy Committee. At
these board meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's
business updates and strategies.
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The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and annual general

meeting during the year ended 30 April 2010 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings
HER SFXE

Audit Remuneration Annual
Board  Committee = Committee general
Name of Directors EEpE meeting meeting meeting meeting
IR R
BEEe ERZEEREE FMEEe BFKRE
Executive directors HITES
WANG Lu Yen F1&E 5/5  NJA TiE R 11 11
Michel BOURLON Michel BOURLON 5/5 *2/2 11 11
KHOO Kim Cheng Jiafinias 5/5 *2/2 *1/1 11
Non-executive directors FHITES
WONG Wai Ming et 35 NATEMA  NANER 0/1
Mark HSU (Note 1) fRBg (M 1) 414 N/ATER  NATEA 0/1
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang T B 4[5 2/2 11 o/1
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius WEDT 5/5 2/2 A A
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 4/5 2/2  NJA TE 0/1
Number of meetings held BEMNRITIRE 5 2 1 1
Notes: B

1. Mr. Mark HSU resigned as a non-executive director and ceased to act as a member of

the Investment Committee of the Board with effect from 18 January 2010.

the meetings by invitation.

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the

Board and Board committees.

“TRFEFR MEEEERQA

The directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but attended
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Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made available
to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a team
of professional staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function) and company secretary of the Company attend all
reqular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to directors for their
comments and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after each meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company's bye-laws also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

The role of the chairman is separate from that of the chief executive
officer of the Group. Currently, the two positions are held by Mr. WANG
Lu Yen and Mr. Michel BOURLON (who are not related to each other)
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set
out in writing, details of which are stated below.

The chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the Board,
in particular, the Executive Committee, on corporate and strategic
planning and ensure proper proceedings of the Board and the Executive
Committee.

Supported by the executive directors and the senior management, the
chief executive officer's principal role is to manage and operate the
Group's day-to-day business, including the implementation of major
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Investment
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
During the year under review, the Board, having considered the current
practice of the Group as explained below, dissolved the Strategy
Committee.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the
Company's website at www.linmark.com for reference.

Current structure of the Board

Executive Committee

WITZBE

Audit Committee
EREEE

Remuneration Committee

FEEE

Investment Committee

REZBE

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.
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Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive directors as
follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
Michel BOURLON (chief executive officer)
KHOO Kim Cheng

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and operation
functions of the Group to the Executive Committee save to the extent
that certain powers and authorities are reserved to the other Board
committees or the full Board. The powers and authorities reserved to the
full Board include the following but are not limited to:

(@) matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a director;

(b)  making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend or pay
dividend;

(c)  approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement of the
profits or losses in respect of annual results or interim results and
(i) the related financial statements and/or accounts;

(d) approving any proposed change in the capital structure, including
any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange;

(e)  approving any decision to change the general character or nature
of the business of the Company;

(f) approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction, very
substantial acquisition and disposal or connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules;

()  matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require an
approval at a full board meeting; and

(h)  any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be imposed
upon the committees by the Board from time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Remuneration Committee are more
particularly discussed below.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive directors
as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the directors. The
members meet reqularly with the internal auditor, external auditors
and the Company's senior management for the review and supervision
of the Company's financial reporting and internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of the
financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual reports
and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to:

(a) review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the chief financial officer
(who heads a team of professional staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function), internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board;

(b)  review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
proposed by management; and

() review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial

reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.
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The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company which took place during the year under review.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2010 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors during the
year under review.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WANG Lu Yen

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the chairman and/or the
chief executive officer of the Company about their recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were in
compliance with the Code Provisions except that Code Provisions
B.1.3(a) and B.1.3(b) have been combined and modified such that
the Remuneration Committee has the power to do such things and
to approve all matters in relation to compensation regarding all the
directors and senior management of the Group in accordance with the
terms and conditions of their respective agreement/contract with the
Company, or as the case may be, the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
In addition, the Remuneration Committee is also delegated with the
authority to exercise all the powers of the Board in relation to the share
option scheme of the Company.
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Management considers that the Remuneration Committee can better
serve its functions under the modified terms ("Modified Terms") of
reference of the Remuneration Committee set out above as its duties
under the Modified Terms are more extensive and onerous than those
prescribed in the Code Provisions. The Company therefore proposes that
the Remuneration Committee shall continue to abide by the provisions
of the Modified Terms in the future. Management will review the terms
regularly and make appropriate changes if necessary.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to consider and approve an incentive programme
which comprises the components of cash bonus and share options
to the directors and employees. By passing written resolutions,
the Remuneration Committee also considered and approved the
remuneration of non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors upon renewal of the letters of appointment and the grant of
share options.

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee comprises two executive directors as follows:

KHOO Kim Cheng (chairman of the committee)

Michel BOURLON

Mark HSU (ceased to act as member of the committee with effect
from 18 January 2010)

The primary duties of the Investment Committee are to review or
recommend to the Board the investment transactions of the Group.

The main duties of the Investment Committee include the following:

(@)  to review, recommend and approve matters relating to mergers
and acquisitions, disposal and formation of any entities and joint
ventures which would not constitute notifiable transactions under
the Listing Rules;

(b)  to review and recommend matters to the Board for approval
relating to mergers and acquisitions, disposal and formation of
any entities and joint ventures which would constitute notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules; and

(c)  toreview and recommend capital market activities.

During the year under review, the Investment Committee did not hold
any meeting.
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Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was formed on 21 April 2006 notwithstanding
there was no such requirement under the Listing Rules or its
recommended best practices. Since 2007, there has not been any formal
meeting held by the Strategy Committee. Instead, business strategies
of the Group have been formulated by the chief executive officer and
discussed with some board members informally before submission to the
full board for further discussion and approval. Since the directors have
no intention to change the current practice, therefore, it is no longer
required to maintain the Strategy Committee. In this respect, the Board
dissolved the Strategy Committee on 1 April 2010 and, since then, the
Board as a whole has been responsible for formulating and reviewing the
strategies of the Group.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the year ended
30 April 2010, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group, in particular, the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting functions.

During the year under review, as delegated by the Board and Audit
Committee, Internal Audit Department ("IAD") has conducted internal
control reviews in accordance with the Three-Year Internal Audit Plan,
which covered financial, operational, IT, compliance and risk management
aspects. The scope of reviews included:

- general IT and application controls;
- compliance with the CG Code; and
- financial and operational controls in Linmark's Bangladesh office.

Major audit findings and recommendations were presented at the Audit
Committee meetings. Further, IAD has followed up the implementation of
agreed management actions of the IT review and reported the results to
the Audit Committee.

In addition, the IAD has updated the Three-Year Internal Audit Plan
for FY2011-2013 based on an annual assessment of the Company's
risk profile, which has been presented to and approved by the Audit
Committee.

RHREESE
BE LR B H HE B & =PRI &
m RMEZEER_ZTEEXFONA=-+—HK
cHZTTLFRE RBEZESWEEBITEM
Eigﬁ REE 7 EEEME M A RTITHRAAE
o WEBMHEESHEFENTHR  AESIR
EFeRESTSEE—TIREAEL ARES
ﬁ?&“ﬁﬁ%% A THEZERERBEE
cHMME EECeERN_ZE—ZTFWNA—H
%ﬁﬁW§§§ HE2REEg8R1HERE
EAEE 2R o

LB RAAR

R EBEE 42
EEQRRHRKASENAMEZERLS - Sins
HEQE REBEE-_ZT-TFHUA=THILFE
W’%?QEﬁK%IW%%%%%%EW%&
Thast c LEREARE S MY 75 E R
BR BIBEERKEREREH

REOBFEA  EEEGRBERZEGHET ' A

MEZBAC KR =FHABEXTEETAR
EEESZ Matalp kit €8 B8

- ARMAREESTE - BREERRE

-  —REMPEREREE

-  EBTREEARTH R
—  MERNNHFREAI R BT o

ITEERERNRERENERZEESRLE
5 o pHN - ABMBEZEFE REREAR TR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁEW%
REREQERGHE

SN - AERE AL ERFI 2 AR B B AR 1 B R B iR L Y
iﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ%%_?——iz_?—ziﬁﬁ
FEN=FHALEZTE  YEREZZES
2 REELLE -

Linmark Group Limited annual report 2010



Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 30 April 2010.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written Guidelines") for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the
Company and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the relevant employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the financial

statements and auditors' remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other publications of the Company and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other requlatory

clear and

requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report" contained in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
April 2010 amounted to approximately US$398,000 and US$102,000
respectively. The non-audit services were mainly related to tax services.
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Shareholder rights and investor relations
The Company follows the practices stated in the CG Code regarding
shareholder rights and investor relations.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders' meetings are contained in the Company's
bye-laws. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules which came into
effect on 1 January 2009, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions put to the vote at
general meetings of the Company will be taken by way of poll.

After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In view of the requirement of Code Provision E.1.3 which came into
effect on 1 January 2009, the Company will arrange for the notice to
shareholders to be sent in the case of annual general meetings at least
20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10
clear business days in the case of all other general meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Investment Committee or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders' meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders' meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.linmark.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company's business developments and operations,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2010.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year under review by
business and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 56.

An interim dividend of 0.75 HK cent per share, totalling approximately
US$651,000, was declared and paid to shareholders during the year
under review.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 0.75 HK
cent per share and a special dividend of 6 HK cents per share in respect
of the year ended 30 April 2010, totalling approximately US$5,892,000.
Subject to shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final and special dividends will be paid in
cash on or about 8 September 2010 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 27 August 2010.

Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, the directors regard Roly International as a
controlling shareholder of the Company and Megastar Holdings Limited
("Megastar") as the ultimate holding company of the Company. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a director
of the Company.

As at 30 April 2010, Roly International, directly and indirectly, held
approximately 70.99% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year under review are set out in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year under review
are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year under review
are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 April 2010, calculated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and consisted of the aggregate of
contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to US$21,635,000
(2009: US$22,561,000).

Share options

The Company's share option scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to
a resolution of the then sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. Under the
Scheme, the Board or a committee thereof may grant options to eligible
persons (see summary below) to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution relating to the amendments to the
Scheme passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 August 2004, the exclusion of Mr. WANG Lu Yen from participating in
the Scheme so long as he remains as a substantial shareholder (as such
term is construed in accordance with the Listing Rules) of the Company
has been removed.

Summary of the Scheme is as follows:

1. Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the Scheme include:

(i) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or

(iii) any business partner, agent, consultant, representative,
supplier of goods or services or customer of any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company.
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Share options (continued)

2

Maximum number of shares

The initial total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
listing of the Company's shares.

Subject to the approval by the Company's shareholders, the
aggregate number of the Company's shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the Company's shares in
issue from time to time. Options granted to the independent non-
executive directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's shares in issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million resulting in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to
be granted to such person under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant of such option must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 5 August
2003, the Company's shareholders approved the refreshment of
the Scheme mandate and the total number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company was re-set at
10% of the shares in issue on 5 August 2003, the date of approval
of the refreshment (i.e. 64,740,000 shares).

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 11 December
2008, the Company's shareholders approved a further refreshment
of the Scheme mandate and the total number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company was re-set
at 10% of the shares in issue on 11 December 2008, the date of
approval of the refreshment (i.e. 67,499,464 shares).
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Share options (continued)

3

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to any eligible persons
(including those cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in
any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Company's shares in issue. Any further grant of
options in excess of such limit must be separately approved by the
Company's shareholders in general meeting.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made, upon payment of HK$1 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the
date as the Board may determine and ending on such date as the
Board may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

Subject to the earlier termination of the Scheme in accordance
with the rules governing the Scheme, the Scheme will expire on 22
April 2012.
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Share options (continued)

Movement of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
granted to the directors of the Company and employees (Note ii) under

BRE @

the Scheme during the year under review was as follows: T

(B &E i) A7

AEBEEFEARBZFIERTARREZRES
RBARAR 2 BREZF ISR

Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

ALARY  RREEE AL IRGHE

Qutstanding Qutstanding ~ Exercise
as at as at price
1May2009  Granted  Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2010 pershare  Date of grant Exercise period
(HKS)
R-BENE R-%-%F
ZA-H ME=1H
BATE  BRE BEE  B&M HATE SRTEE RiLpH EER
(&)
Directors EZ
IVANG Lu Yen THE - 500,000 - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25(08/2010-24/08/2015
Michel BOURLON Michel BOURLON 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 0.164 04/11/2008 12/01/2010-1/01/2015
(Note v} (FzEiv)
KHOO Kim Cheng JilEp 5,660,000 - - - 5,660,000 0830 24082007 24/08/2008-23(08/2013
INONG Wai Ming EEH 1,000,000 - (1,000000 - - 0.830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23(08/2013
- 500,000 - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009 25(08/2010-24/08/2015
1,000,000 500,000 (1,000,000 - 500,000
INANG Arthur Minshiang THHE 625,000 - (625,000) - - 0.830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23(08/2013
- 312,500 - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08/2015
625,000 312,500 (625,000) - 312,500
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HER 625,000 - - - 625,000 0.830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23(08/2013
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert - 312,500 - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25/08/2010-24/08[2015
TULLENERS TULLENERS
Peter Loris SOLOMON Peter Loris SOLOMON 10,500,000 - - (10,500,000) - 0.830 24/08/2007 24/08/2008-23(08/2013
(Note v) (HzE)
Mark HSU v - 312,500 - (312,500) - 0.700 25/08/2009 25(08/2010-24/08/2015
(Note v (M)
Continuous contract employees  SEAXIES 15,897,500 - (32310000 (3,530,000 9,136,500 0830 24/08/2007 24/082008-23/08/2013
(Note i (B3t i)
- 4915500 - (307,000 4,608,500 0.700 25/08/2009 25082010-24/08/2015
15,897,500 4915500 (3,231,000  (3,837,000) 13,745,000
Total At 54307500 6853000 (4,856000) (14,649,500) 41,655,000
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Share options (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BRE @

Bt
The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily (i) REERARTEBRER L B BBRIAEHR2E
quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the outstanding options BTERAT  ARARGO ZWHENT :
were granted were as follows:
Closing price per share immediately
Date of grant BB before the date of grant
RERHAHIZBRUTE
HK$
BT
23 August 2007 Z+ENA-+=H 0.860
3 November 2008 ENF+—A=H 0.140
24 August 2009 ZAFNAZ+IA 0.670

Employees include employees of the Group and of the subsidiaries of Roly
International (other than the directors of the Company) working under employment
contracts with the Group or subsidiaries of Roly International which are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws
of Hong Kong).

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of
options granted under the Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is one of the commonly
used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can be exercised before the
expiry of the option period. The assumptions used in the calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate - the yield of 4-year Exchange Fund Notes on the date
of grant
(b) Expected volatility of share price - annualised volatility for one year

immediately preceding the date of grant
(c) Expected life of share options - 3.5-4.5 years
(d) Expected dividend paid out rate - 40%

The amount charged to in the income statement for the year ended 30 April 2010 was
approximately US$150,000 (2009: US$171,000).

The fair value of options granted during the year under review using the Black-
Scholes Model was approximately US$156,000 (2009: US$49,000).

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model is based on
various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the option holders may be substantially different from the value of
options calculated.

Options to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares of the Company were granted to Mr.
Michel BOURLON. The number of shares underlying such options are in excess of
the individual limit permitted under the rules of the Scheme and the Listing Rules.
Approval from shareholders of the Company in relation to the grant of options in
excess of the individual limit to Mr. Bourlon was obtained at special general meeting
of the Company held on 11 December 2008. Details of the grant of such options were
disclosed in the Company's circular dated 25 November 2008.

Mr. Peter Loris SOLOMON resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 1
August 2008. The outstanding share options held by Mr. Solomon lapsed on 31 July
2009 which was the date of termination of his employment with the Company.

Mr. Mark HSU resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 18 January
2010. On the effective date of his resignation, the outstanding share options held by
Mr. Hsu lapsed.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors
WANG Lu Yen

Michel BOURLON

KHOO Kim Cheng

Non-executive directors
WONG Wai Ming
Mark HSU (resigned with effect from 18 January 2010)

Independent non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, Mr. KHOO Kim Cheng and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS, in accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company's bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election while Mr. KHOO Kim
Cheng has not offered himself for re-election.

Directors' service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 30 April 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong) ("SFQO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations
(i) Interests in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations

EERARAARERBEE ZRS - 8
ERORESFPZER

R-ZE—TFOA=1TH ' ARARIZEERTR
RENA DB AT AABEE (ERLEBE
BIEMEF S RAE G ([385 LG RG]
EXVED) 2By - AR REFTEEELTA
ARBRBESF KRB GG E35216FEZ B
MR AR X (NFE) REFRETHA
HMEARB LRz SRR

() RADTRHEEEEEZBM 2
ERAR
() BARARENGLE Rl

Company/Name of

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class

Number and class of securities as

associated corporations  Name of directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2010
(Note 1)

R-B—FF

mMA=+H

N EREES

B EEZ B8 R g4 HEHE RER hZREBDL
(Bt 1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%
PiN/NE]| F 1 EmfBA ordinary shares
i
(L

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 479,202,286 70.99%
iN/NE]| F1&E corporations ordinary shares
(Note 2) Tk
REHEE 2 (L

(Mt5E 2)

Company Michel BOURLON Beneficial owner 4,333,333 0.64%
Vi N/NE]! EnEEA ordinary shares
R
(L)
(Note 3)
(BH%E 3)

Company WANG Arthur Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
IN/NE]| Minshiang EmEA A ordinary shares
T ar Rl
(U

Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 100,000 0.01%
PiN/NE] =& EmEa A ordinary shares
=gl
(U
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (Continued)

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the

EERAQAREEBE LB KA -~ 18
ARORESFPZESR @)

(a) REQAREMEBEZE ZKRMH 2%

Company and its associated corporations (Continued) mRRE ()
(i) Interests in the shares of the Company and its associated () RAERE]REIGEZEZ R #Em
corporations (Continued) (%)
Percentage
shareholding in
the same class
Company/Name of Number and class of securities as
associated corporations  Name of directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2010
(Note 1)
R-B—FF
MA=+H
NG TE[F B & 5
HEBEE 2 B8 E=nE &4 HEHERER heREBDLL
(B 1)
Megastar WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%
(Note 2) T EnEA A 1E B
(B&E 2) (L
Westman Linmark WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 2 preference shares 0.07%
(Thailand) Limited T8 BEmEBA 218 SERX
(Notes 4 and 5) (L
(M3 4J25)
Westman Linmark KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 1 preference share 0.03%
(Thailand) Limited EB$ R BEREAA 1EER
(Note 4) (L
(HizE 4)
Notes: Mzt -
(1) The letter “L" represents the director's interests in the shares. (1) [L] TYEE ERRD 2 fEs o

(2) As at 30 April 2010, (i) RGS Holdings Limited (“RGS"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Roly International, owned 433,386,667 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 64.21% of the issued share
capital of the Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619
shares of the Company, representing approximately 6.79% of the
issued share capital of the Company. By virtue of the relationship
between Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Roly International as stated in Note
(2) of Section (a)(i) to the paragraph headed “Substantial shareholders
and other persons who are required to disclose their interests
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO" below, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was deemed,
by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in
all the shares of the Company in which Roly International and RGS
were interested.

“TRFEFR MEEEERQA
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares

and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (Continued)

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Interests in the shares of the Company and its associated

corporations (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

@)

Mr. Michel BOURLON had acquired these 4,333,333 shares of the
Company from RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International,
pursuant to an offer letter dated 4 November 2008 from RGS to
Mr. Bourlon. Pursuant to such offer letter, RGS had agreed to grant
options to Mr. Bourlon to purchase from RGS up to 6,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company subject to and upon the terms and conditions
stated therein. As at 30 April 2010, Mr. Bourlon had exercised his
options to acquire 4,333,333 shares of the Company from RGS, while
an option to acquire 2,166,667 shares of the Company from RGS
remained outstanding.

Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company.
As at 30 April 2010, the issued share capital of Westman Linmark
(Thailand) Limited was 12,000,000 Baht divided into 2,940 ordinary
shares of 2,000 Baht each and 3,060 preference shares of 2,000 Baht
each.

Mr. WANG Lu Yen is also deemed to be interested in all ordinary
shares and preference share of Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited
registered in the name of Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited by virtue
of the fact that Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited is wholly owned by
the Company and Mr. WANG Lu Yen, directly and indirectly, holds
approximately 71.09% of the issued share capital of the Company. As
at 30 April 2010, Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited owned all the ordinary
shares and one preference share of Westman Linmark (Thailand)
Limited.

Short positions in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations

EERNEAQEIREMEBEIE ZRHD - 8
RO RESFPZESR @)

(a) REQAREMEBEZE 2RO T 2%

w=RRE (8

(i) RAEREIREFEZEZ KRG Ez
(&)
fizx - (&)

3) Michel BOURLONZE £ B R #E & B BB ~
% & Mf )& 2 FIRGSHBourlonst 4£ 2 B
A_ZEN\FT—ANBZEHNRHEE
RGSHE B4,333,333 AR AR 1D  BIRZ
Z 4 4 - RGSE [ & & FBourlont 4
B A% 4 LA BRGSUHX B & %6,500,0000% 2
A EEBAR MR ST X R BT R X
Mgt BE-_ZT-—ZTFWNA=1+8
Bourlonst & B 17§ H i i # BRGSRE
4,333,333B8 A A B ARAD - i 14 8 AT #ERGS
RHE2,166,667R AR A A IR (7 2 BEARAE AR
171E -

(4) Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited 27282
RAIZKMBAR - R—ZE—ZTFMA=1
H » Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited,Z
B B ATIRZX 312,000,000k & * 5 732,940
s £ A% TH] {E2,0005% & 2 & 38 % 23,060
FAREE2,000F 8% 2 BT

(5) AR Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited 2N 7]
2ERERTREEEEESHEERE
H71.09% K AT Z B BEITRA - 15
P A NRAR A LALinmark Agency (BVI)
Limited#4 2% 5% fift & 52 A Westman Linmark
(Thailand) Limited.Z FT & & i@ B% & & 5%
Bz R=E—ZTFWA=+H "
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited %% Westman
Linmark (Thailand) Limited 78 2 Ei@% &
1IRME AR ©

(i)  RARREIREGEZE 2 RIIKE

Company/Name of

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class

Number and class of securities as

associated corporations Name of director Capacity of securities at 30 April 2010
(Note 1)

R-ZFE-ZF

mA=+H

¥ /N ERERRS

HECEE 2 BB EEgR 14 BEHBEREHR hzREFDL
(Mt3E 1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 2,166,667 0.32%
IN/NE| F 1 corporations ordinary shares
(Note 2) Rl
REGERE 2 R (S

(F5E 2)
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (Continued)

(a)

=

Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (Continued)

(ii)

TEFR

Short positions in the shares of the Company and its

associated corporations (Continued)

Notes:

Q)

()

The letter "S" represents the director's short positions in the shares.

Pursuant to an offer letter dated 4 November 2008 from RGS,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, to Mr. Michel
BOURLON, RGS had agreed to grant options to Mr. Bourlon to
purchase from RGS up to 6,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company
subject to and upon the terms and conditions stated therein. As at 30
April 2010, Mr. Bourlon had exercised his options to acquire 4,333,333
shares of the Company from RGS, while an option to acquire
2,166,667 shares of the Company from RGS remained outstanding.
As at 30 April 2010, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly
International, had short positions in 2,166,667 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 0.32% of the issued share capital of the
Company. By virtue of the relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen
and Roly International as stated in Note (2) of Section (a)(ii) to the
paragraph headed "Substantial shareholders and other persons who
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO"
below, Mr. Wang was deemed, by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of
the SFO, to be interested in all the short positions in the shares of the
Company in which Roly International and RGS were interested.

EERAQRAREBEBEIE ZR® -
ARORESFPZESR @)

(a) REQAAREEBLIE 2RO F &
mRRE (&)
(i) REAREREIFHZEZ R GKE
()
BIEE -

(1) [S] THEE SRR R Z KA °
BIE2EEE 22 E B2 AIRGSE
Michel BOURLON%E £ Z HEiA =TT )\
F+—AMBZEH R - RGSERER
FBourlonZt 4 f& IR # A BRGSHE B & %
6,500,000/% AN A R L AA% - MEZRE ST K
HEE G R IGEE - BHE_T—ZF N
A=+ H - Bourlonc £ B 171 H & A% 4
B RGSFRME4,333,333M A A A I + 1M id
B Al #RGSFR RE2,166,667 % AN 2 A A& 1D
BRENARITE - RZZE—ZTFWA=
T8 ()EEERZ2EME A FRCSH
2,166,667 R AN A B DR HEB AR + £k
AARBEITIRA03200° B TX [E
ERRRIBIEE F R BAE GO EXVEE
WEERS 2 b AL | —ER % (a) (i) B0 D

B 5 (2) A7 it 3 4% B 2k 4 B 2 3 B B 2 Rl
WRAR - RIBEFSH RS GG EXVEB 2
1632+ F S EWAR B 2 B B BR ’RRGSAT
BEESZFBARRBRMDARTHES
K o

()
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Report of the Directors
ExaREE

Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares ZBEZERAQATREBBEEIEZRH - 8
and debentures of the Company and its associated BERGOKRESP 2= (@)
corporations (Continued)

(b) Interests and short positions in the underlying shares (b) RAQTRHEMBE ZE ZEBRHH

of the Company and its associated corporations ZERRAXR
Number of underlying
Company/Name of shares comprised in
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity the options
(Notes 1 and 2)
¥ NN BREMS
HEEE 228 EEHR 1=27) ZIEBERAEE
(FI&E 1%2)
Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
ERT FieH EEE A
Company Michel BOURLON Beneficial owner 22,166,667 (L)
¥ N/NE] EmAEA A
Company KHOO Kim Cheng Beneficial owner 5,660,000 (L)
P N/N] B ER R EmEAA
Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
¥iN/NE] =ZHA Em#EA A
Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
Vi N/NC] T Bk EnEAA
Company TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius Beneficial owner 625,000 (L)
¥iN/NC] HELT EmHEA A
Company Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
PiN/NG] EnEAA
Notes: P 5E -

(1) The letter “L" represents the director's interests in the shares.

(2) Details of the above underlying shares are set out in the paragraph headed

"Directors' rights to acquire shares or debentures".

(1) L JEEERRA R 2 -

(20 ERBEERGZFERR [EEBEROLES
ZHER ] —B e
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (Continued)

(c)

Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 30 April 2010, none of the directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

(1)

Movement of the options granted by the Company to the directors
of the Company under the Scheme during the year under review
was set out in the paragraph headed "Share Options" above.

Pursuant to an offer letter dated 4 November 2008 from RGS,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, to Mr. Michel
BOURLON, RGS granted options to Mr. Bourlon to purchase from
RGS up to 6,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company subject to
and upon the terms and conditions stated therein. In January 2009
and January 2010, Mr. Bourlon exercised his options to purchase
2,166,666 shares and 2,166,667 shares of the Company from RGS
respectively. As at 30 April 2010, an option to acquire 2,166,667
shares of the Company from RGS remained outstanding.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or

subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the

Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

—F-TEER AEEEERAF

EERALAREEBZEZE RS - 8

ARORESFPZESR @)
(c) REQAFAREMEBEEZ2ES P2’

wmRAE

R-Z—BEMA=+A ARAZEE
RITRAEZBERANR R R EARBAEZ
BEHPHABTARRAREES RPE
B B35 > B DM kA
SARBIZETREMERNA R KRBT Z

HRTAR -

EERERDAUES 2ER

(1)

B EXCTIRERE SN

ARRRABBEFEARBZAEETA
NAEEZBREZEHHN L [HERE ]

—Be

BiE 2 BB 2 2 & 8 2 5IRGSBMichel
BOURLONt A Z HEIA=ZZTZNFE+—H
B Z 24 % - RGSE [l & 1% FBourlon
5t A B AR 7 LA B RGSHE B 5% %6,500,000/% 28
NEEERK - HEBEE TR R RTE R R
G - RZEZNF—AR=E—ZTF—
A  Bourlonst 1T ELEER%4E + BRGSH HIl
8% E2,166,666/% 2,166,667 X AN A &) {5 ©
RZZBE—FFWPA=+H ' HE KRGS
82,166,667 A A R I 10 2 B AR D R 1T
f# o

RARBEFEEMRRE - &

RAHEEMZERAT - ARMBARHMER
AR ELET I LB NERR R EEHER
AR RS AEf] B R 2 B4 2K (& 2 1 2 ER A

Ng
S o

I
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Report of the Directors
ExaREE

Substantial shareholders and other persons who
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to

Part XV of the SFO

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company
As at 30 April 2010, the following shareholders (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company whose interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company are set out above) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

FERRRREE S RIPE KO EXVE
ARBERECHMAL

(a) ZRFAZEERR
RZF-FFEMA=1TH  THER (ER
ARAZEMREEEND ZEERARD
R ENZ AR BEE RITRARLRIN) B
ARB 2 Bin RAARBD F#EAEALAR
REARBEFEZ KA EIEPIFEBEFEZE

register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

ACff 2 R BORR

the SFO:
(i) Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the ()  REREIRGRIEBERG .2 #z
Company

Number of
shares of the

Approximate
percentage of
interests as at

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2010
(Note 1)
R=F—FF
BEAAHE B=+HB2
FTERRERE 54 R EE RSBt
(P &E 1)
RGS Beneficial owner 433,386,667 (L) 64.21%
BB A
Roly International Beneficial owner 45,815,619 (L) 6.79%
Z B R EmHEAA
Interest of controlled 433,386,667 (L) 64.21%
corporation (Note 2)
SEHEE = (M 2)
Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%
corporations (Note 2)
RYEHLER 2w (5 2)
Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited  Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%
corporations (Note 2)
SYEHEE 2 e (M5 2)
Megastar Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%
corporations (Note 2)
SEHEE 2w (MEE 2)
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%

corporations (Note 2)

REHNEE 2 am (5 2)
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who

are required to disclose their interests pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO (Continued)

(i)

FERRRREEZ RPEKRHIEXVE
ARBESZ 2 HMAL @

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (Continued) () BZRATZEERE (&)
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the () REREIRGRIEER D F < #m
Company (Continued) (%
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares of the interests as at
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2010
(Note 1)
R=Z—FF
BEAXAQT MA=+HZ
FTERKER 54 & E ERBNEDLT
(BfFEE 1)
One Principle Development Limited Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%
corporations (Note 2)
ZiEH AR (M 2)
CHIM Pui Chung Interest of controlled 479,202,286 (L) 70.99%

—T-TFEFER

EER corporations (Note 2)
SEEREE R (FEE 2)
Notes: st

The letter "L" represents the entity's interests in the shares.

As at 30 April 2010, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly
International, owned 433,386,667 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 64.21% of the issued share capital of
the Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares of
the Company, representing approximately 6.79% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Roly International is wholly owned by Rl
Holdings Bermuda Limited. Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by Rl
Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited as to 92.7% and by Megastar
as to 0.73%. Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by
each of Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar as to 45.22% and
54.78% respectively. Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. is wholly owned
by One Principle Development Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. CHIM Pui Chung. Megastar is wholly owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen.
Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a director of the Company, is also a director of
RGS, Roly International, Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited, Rl Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited and Megastar.

MEEEBR AR

(1) TU iEEERERD T 2 S

() RZZE—ZFMA=1H " ((ZEEEZ
2 & [ff 8 A RIRGSHE 4 433,386,667k A 1
AR - AEARR BB BT A 4764.21% :
K (i) 2 gk B BX #E 5 45,815,61908 /8 A A
B - 6 AR R E B AT AR A £96.79% °
% [ B BX BRI Holdings Bermuda Limited
% & # A ° Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited
% 5l B8 Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda
Limited 52 Megastar#s 4 92.7% 52.0.7300H 5 ©
RI Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited% B
FHRI Investment Holdings, Ltd.%Megastar
5 545.2200 5 54.78%% 2= ° Rl Investment
Holdings, Ltd.E80ne Principle Development
Limited 2 EHEH > MEER —KHER
BEES2EMWA Z A A ° Megastarii £
HETEREHES - ARFAIZEFTER
B L £ INARGS © 2 E B « Rl Holdings
Bermuda Limited * Rl Investment Holdings
Bermuda Limited & Megastar 2 E 5 ©
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Report of the Directors
ExaREE

Substantial shareholders and other persons who FEREREREZZRBERHIEXVE
are required to disclose their interests pursuant to ZAEEEZZHMALT @)
Part XV of the SFO (Continued)

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (Continued) () BZRATZEERE (&)
(i)~ Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the (i) RAL B R AEER 7.2 KB
Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares of the short positions as
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held at 30 April 2010
(Note 1)
R-ZE-—FF
BEAQF mMA=+HZ
FTERRER &4 RHEHE KRERBHNBED
(M5E 1)
RGS Beneficial owner 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
EmlEA
Roly International Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
Z B R corporation (Note 2)
RiEHEE (M 2)
Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
corporations (Note 2)
RiEHER 2 #am (s 2)
Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited  Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
corporations (Note 2)
REhEE 2 s (M 2)
Megastar Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
corporations (Note 2)
RiEHEE (M 2)
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
corporations (Note 2)
RYEHIEE 2 S (BTEE 2)
One Principle Development Limited Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%
corporations (Note 2)
RiEHERE 2 #am (s 2)
CHIM Pui Chung Interest of controlled 2,166,667 (S) 0.32%

EER corporations (Note 2)

RimsAE 2 s (HEE 2)
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Substantial shareholders and other persons who

are required to disclose their interests pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO (Continued)

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company (Continued)

(ii)

Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

)

The letter "S" represents the entity's short positions in the shares.

Pursuant to an offer letter dated 4 November 2008 from RGS,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, to Mr. Michel
BOURLON, RGS had agreed to grant options to Mr. Bourlon to
purchase from RGS up to 6,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company
subject to and upon the terms and conditions stated therein. As
at 30 April 2010, Mr. Bourlon had exercised his options to acquire
4,333,333 shares of the Company from RGS, while an option to
acquire 2,166,667 shares of the Company from RGS remained
outstanding. As at 30 April 2010, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Roly International, had short positions in 2,166,667 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 0.32% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Roly International is wholly owned by RI
Holdings Bermuda Limited. RI Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by RI
Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited as to 92.7% and by Megastar
as to 0.73%. Rl Investment Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by
each of Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. and Megastar as to 45.22% and
54.78% respectively. Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd. is wholly owned
by One Principle Development Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. CHIM Pui Chung. Megastar is wholly owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen.
Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a director of the Company, is also a director of
RGS, Roly International, Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited, Rl Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited and Megastar.

(b) Other persons who are required to disclose their
interests pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed "Directors' interests

in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” and paragraph (a) above, as at 30
April 2010, no other person had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions
Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during
the year under review are disclosed in Note 38(a) to the financial

statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions

fall under the definition of a connected transaction or continuing

connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

—TREFEH

MEEEERAT

FTERRRREEZ RIPE KO EXVE
ARBES 2 HMAL @

(a) ARFAZEERR (@)
(i) RAEARBRURIEERGZAKE
(&

GEE
(1) ISI DEEBRRGDZKA -

(2) RIEZE BB 22 &K B2 FIRGSH
Michel BOURLONE &2 HEA R =TT N\
F+—AMBZEZLEM - RGSERBEK
FBourlonsc A FEAR#E - AIERCSHEE &%
6,500,00008 AR R E @A - /BB SFZ K
HEERIER R R - HE T —ZF N
A=+ H - Bourlon%t £ B 17 & H B AR 4
BRGSBME4,333 3330 A A AR + A
5 AJ#ERGSFRE 2,166,667 Ak AN A Al IR 15 2
BREDRTE RZF—ZFMA=
+B - ()2HBERZZ2EHEQARCSH
2,166,667 AR BIR AR ER KR - K
AR RE EITARAN0.3200 » 2 BB i
Rl Holdings Bermuda LimitedZ& %A ° R
Holdings Bermuda Limited%3 B/ESRI Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited & Megastari¥a
92.7%J%0.73%%& %5 ° Rl Investment Holdings
Bermuda Limited%> Bl FHRI Investment Holdings,
Ltd. %2 Megastarts 4 45.2200 5 54.78%%HE #5 ©
Rl Investment Holdings, Ltd.F3One Principle
Development Limited® & # & * & &
B—RABBREEZERBZAR °
MegastarFA T B £ 2 EHE - A QA
ZEEEHRBEEIARGS - ZEEIE -
RI Holdings Bermuda Limited * Rl Investment
Holdings Bermuda Limited &2MegastarZ &
=o

(b) REZFRBERHFIEXVIE A ERE
wmZHMAL
B EERARQR REBEEE KRGS - 11
By RESFR z e | — B & EX ()
FrEEIN RE—ZTFEWA=+H -
BEEE M A TRARE Z&n XEERG
A B ARRBIRIEE 5 K E &6
F336I5FE 2 E M2 ERTAR -

BFREALRS
AEBEEERNETNEARREALR SN
WEME3B()NIE - R T XPIEEIN - IF
BRAEALIRSBR EMARANBATRAAELZ
MEXZFHFEMER S - BRARLER - FE
Bz~ D SOBIBRALEZRTE
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Report of the Directors
ExaREE

Connected transactions

The following transaction between a connected person (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and the Company, details of which are also disclosed
in Note 38(a) to the financial statements, constitutes a continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The transaction has been entered into and is ongoing
for which relevant announcements had been made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transaction relating to Linmark
(HK) Limited

On 14 February 2008, Linmark (HK) Limited (“Linmark HK") entered
into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Ken Ball
Limited ("Ken Ball") whereby Ken Ball agreed to lease to Linmark
HK House 127, The Portofino, 88-188 Pak To Avenue, Clearwater
Bay, Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong on a fully-furnished
basis for a term of 24 months commencing on 14 February 2008,
provided that Linmark HK has an option to terminate the Tenancy
Agreement in the second year after the commencement date by
giving two months notice to Ken Ball in writing. The monthly
rent (inclusive of rates, government rent and service charges)
payable by Linmark HK to Ken Ball under the Tenancy Agreement is
HK$135,000.

The aggregate rental (inclusive of rates, government rent and
service charges) paid by Linmark HK during the year ended 30 April
2010 to Ken Ball is HK$405,000. A notice of termination has been
served to terminate the Tenancy Agreement with effect from 7
August 2009.

The entire issued share capital of Ken Ball is owned by Mr. Peter
Loris SOLOMON, a former executive director and the former chief
executive officer of the Company, who resigned with effect from
1 August 2008 but remained as an employee of the Group until
7 August 2009. Accordingly, Ken Ball was an associate of Mr.
Solomon and a connected person of the Company up to 1 August
2009.

The directors of the Company (including the independent non-executive
directors) consider that the above continuing connected transaction was
conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the agreement.
The directors of the Company (including the independent non-executive
directors) are of the view that the terms of the above continuing
connected transaction was fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

HEXS

ATHBEZEAL (EXRE LETRA) BARBET
Y2RS5 (FHBIRET B HRENE8EIE) B
P EMRAFAIENSERERS - ABTEMH
AIF1NEZHBRFEERIRE - ZFERD
BRI KRFEFEET MARREER EMHRAN
BE - (ERBENBE M -

EREAME (F8) BRATRZEERE
RS

R-ZZN\F-_A+MHE - 2% (FB) B
RAE ([MERE]) BERERAF ([
1) AT E R ((BEHE]) - B
KRB AMNEFTEHETEH AR B K
A 5 1€88-1885% M0 A 1275k (EEBR
B) H-ZETE ) N\FE- A +MB##EtAH24
A - EMREEBERIERE  ATRFEKAB
BE_FRAGHRBELIMEAZEBA -
AR IEFAE R - MERBREHEEHZE
FAMEKRIMZ2AE (BEEM WK
fR7 %) £135,000/8 T °

HE-_Z-ZFMA=F+HIEFE  #HE
ERMERE M2 EHEE (BEEMM -
N BRTEE ) A405,000/8 7T © O3 H A& 1B
ERIAERHE B _TEZThAhFENALR
HEAERK o

MR ER Z 280 B 21T AN i A2 A AT
17 & 25 F& Bl 17 IR 48 £ Peter Loris SOLOMON
LR BR_ZT)N\FE/\ A —HiEE
T BEE_FTTNAFNALBIETNAR
SBEE-A BEE_TZNF/NA—
B - B3k ASolomone E 2 BEE A+ RAR
RlZEBAL -

ARBEF (BREUNTES) &5 bitt
FEREXSIRAKEZ —REBEEBBIE
R REEGER - ERBEET - ARFE
=2 (BRBIUFATES) AR5 LAKERE
RHZIGRDBRFRE  HFAERRARROE

e -
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Connected transactions (Continued)

The above continuing connected transaction was reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company at the meeting of
the Audit Committee of the Board held on 13 July 2010. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company confirmed that the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction was entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain factual finding
procedures on the above continuing connected transaction on a sample
basis in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400
"Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial
Information" issued by the HKICPA. The Board confirmed that it had
received a letter from the auditors of the Company confirming the
matters stated in Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transaction stated above.

Directors' interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 38(a) to the financial statements,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the Group
in aggregate accounted for approximately 63.6% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately 20.6% of
the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 12.9% of the Group's total shipment volume and the
largest vendor accounted for approximately 4.0% of the Group's total
shipment value.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
500 of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in the
top five vendors or customers noted above.

“E-TEFH MEKEERAF

BERS @)

ARTBY N TEECR -_E—SF+A+=
AEANESSEREESeH - B3 Ll
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SHBEBEREMET  BRATAE  FAEKA
IR SR A EEBE 25 o

LR ETARBIE14A3815F - EFSZEB AR AZ
Y L NFERERS - HREB AT
Mt 2 B 75 HE R BRS E Rl B 44005% [ BRI S A R
WITRAERFNANTEE | WHEFEETE
TFEEAESEF - EFBALEREEREZ
HRH L _E TR RS 14A 38K FT B R B IEA(Z K ©

RAEER B LRS-
T4AZ R T AR E Bk ©

WP T RAIE

EECaER

B X R s E i T38@) T BEE SN - AAF]
SRR AT - [ RN ER BB
B2 BE] AR A BB F E T2 4R s R B B F
EARERKENDABRMARAESTERAFE
EEFREEARZEBAKREXBZEXRA
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AEBFEEFRAEEZHER
RABBEFEAN  AEBRAREARTFE EHMG
AEBEETE 26360 ERFFA—REFLHML
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AEEZARSGARERAHOEREENES
ME2129%  ERRAREEAEARNEENE
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Report of the Directors
ExaREE

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's

listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's securities during the year under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 141 and 142 of the
annual report.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance Report" on pages
18 to 32.

Sufficiency of public float

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year under review.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as the auditors of the Company
with effect from 17 November 2008. Thereafter, at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 11 December 2008, Ernst & Young were
appointed as the new auditors of the Company for the financial year
commencing on 1 May 2008.
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Auditors (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of
the next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the directors.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888

&R0 21 1818

TR +852 2846 9888

{HH: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT
To the shareholders of Linmark Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Linmark Group Limited set
out on pages 56 to 140, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 April 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April 2010
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
15 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
melkmEE

Year ended 30 April 2010
BHE_T-TFMA=THILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note us$‘ooo us$'o00
B FEx FET
REVENUE Wz 5 93,526 195,762
Cost of sales HEKA (67,200) (159,823)
Gross profit ESVY 26,326 35,939
Other income =N 5 2,525 1,995
General and administrative expenses —RE RAITERA X (25,647) (33,207)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —KWBERARIER 2 W 34 5,255 -
Loss on deregistration of branches S/NEIE)\SE RSl <Fi=| (1,036) -
Restructuring costs BHER (1,362) (1,719)
Impairment loss on goodwill FEREEE 7 - (3,000)
Impairment loss on patents and trademarks EF| N B2 R B &5 18 7 - (10,137)
Finance costs % ER 8 - (52)
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — fEB{F—K L RIIEHIZE 2 8 (4) (4)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB AT A (B ) 6 6,057 (10,185)
Income tax expense FriSHif X 1 (138) (2,069)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FE=M,(EE) 5,919 (12,254)
Attributable to: AN & -
Owners of the Company PiN/NEIEZ V=N 12 5,919 (8,350)
Non-controlling interest JEIE R 2 - (3.904)
5,919 (12,254)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAQ R]EimARREZS A A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF L FREF,(E5iE)
THE COMPANY (expressed in US cent) (LAZEMLZF)) 13
Basic FHK 0.9 (1.2)
Diluted e 0.9 N/A N5

Details of the dividends to shareholders of the Company are set  ANAFAKE TR R EF BT IR B EHFE14 o
out in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZEWER
Year ended 30 April 2010
HE_T-ZTFNA=TRHILLFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
us$'ooo US$'000
FEx FET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEwHN(EE) 5,919 (12,254)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith 2 E A
Exchange differences: ME 5, =58
Translation gain of foreign operations MEBINETS 2 W (598) (1,433)
Reclassification adjustments included in AL BRERZER
the consolidated income statement SEEFE
- gain on liquidation of a subsidiary — —KKBRREEZ W= (1,824) -
- loss on deregistration of branches — DA RIBUHEMZ EE 1,036 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEAEMEERA (1,386) (1,433)
FOR THE YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEZEBA (BE) 858 4,533 (13,687)
FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to: A& 77 M -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ SN 4,533 (9.170)
Non-controlling interest TR - (4,517)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEZEBA (BE) 858 4,533 (13,687)

FOR THE YEAR

“T-TEEH HEREERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR &R

As at 30 A ril 2010
A—E—ZTFMA=+H

2010 2009
—E-ZF —2ENF
Note Us$'o00 US$'000
P FEx FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 15 786 1,364
Intangible assets ELEE 16 26,333 26,489
Available-for-sale financial asset A ESREE 17 84 84
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity R—RERZEHERE 2 IEE 19 15 19
Deferred tax assets REEFTEEE 20 94 86
Total non-current assets EMBE LR 27,312 28,042
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 69 2,440
Trade receivables FEINE FEER 22 5,324 18,239
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JE{FRIE « & M EMEKFRIE 23 7,422 7,309
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFEEFMEER 24 20,953 23,674
Total current assets MBEEBT 33,768 51,662
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables JENE SRR 25 5,371 22,282
Accruals and other payables JEETE A M E A T FRIE 26 10,410 12,040
Warranty provision 1R ARG 27 - 1,154
Balance of consideration payable for U BB B BB A B) 2 FEAST
acquisitions of subsidiaries REHEE 28 1,149 1,149
Dividend payable to a minority shareholder JEff—KMIB AT —%
of a subsidiary DERRER 2 IR B - 742
Tax payable JERTTRIE 1,771 2,143
Total current liabilities mEBREAZE 18,701 39,510
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEBEEFE 15,067 12,152
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRDERE 42,379 40,194
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E S EE=Ri
Post-employment benefits & 8 R IK1EF 29 1,254 1,192
Total non-current liabilities EMB B EEEE 1,254 1,192
Net assets BEFE 41,125 39,002
EQUITY FERR
Issued capital B EITIRA 30 13,500 13,500
Reserves 1 32(a) 27,625 25,502
Equity attributable to owners of PN/ RSN
the Company e RS 41,125 39,002
Non-controlling interest FEEAR - -
TOTAL EQUITY S 4E%R 41,125 39,002
WANG Lu Yen E 2R Michel BOURLON
Director 2% Director 2%
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GOERBDE

Year ended 30 April 2010

BE_T-THENA-THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREREAES

Share Capital ~ Exchange Non-
Issued Share option Special redemption  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve’ reserve feserve  eamings Total interest equity
BEf Bk 2 B AR
BE RiVAE B WNEE BOEE RBEE RERN A BE ERRE
Note  US§000  US$000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000  US$'000  US§000  US§'000  US$'000  US§'000
i T&r TEr TEr T TEr TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  Tin
At 1 May 2008 R-ZE)\ERE-E 13500 21632 582 184 4 1500 1055 48,001 4517 52518
Total comprehensive loss EELEEE
for the year b - - - - - (820) (8,350) (9,170) [a517)  (13,687)
Equity-settled share option IRESHZ
armangements BEEL S 3 - - 171 - - - - 1l - 171
Share options lapsed during the year  FRE & B kiE - - (413) - - - 43 - - -
At 30 April 2009 \ZETNE
MA=1H 13,500 21,632 340 184 48 680 2618 39,002 - 39,002
At 1 May 2009 R-EENFRA-E 13500 2163 340 184 I B0 2618 3900 - 300
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) —~ £Z2EMA /(B
for the year g - - - - - [1,389) 5919 4533 - 4533
Equity-settled share option IRE 2
arrangements BRERH 3 - - 150 - - - - 150 - 150
Share options lapsed/cancelled ERBAR/
during the year FEE - - (195) - - - 195 - - -
Final 2009 dividend paid BRZZENE
RHBRE - - - - - - (g (199 - 1909
Interim 2010 dividend paid BN-2-%F
hHRE 14 - - - - - - 61  (651) - (651)
At 30 April 2010 RZE-2%
MA=1H 13,500 21,632 295 184 48 (706) 6,172 41,125 - 41125
Representing: Ik
2010 “T-%F
Final dividend proposed RERERE 14 - - - - - - 655 - - -
Special dividend proposed RRESIRE 14 - - - - - -5l - - -
Others Efh - - - - - - 280 - - -
- - - - - - 6n - - -
# Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of share capital # BHRERERADAERIRAREAANARBARRRAAAKEZHBA AR
of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital of THERECEE -

subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.

—E-TEFH MEKEERAT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

Year ended 30 April 2010
HE_ZT-ZFOA=THILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
Note US$'000 Us$'000
B 5E FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RKEEHB7/IERE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB ATRF S (EE) - 6,057 (10,185)
Adjustments for: P O
Finance costs 7% 8 8 - 52
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — FE{hF—KLREIEHITEE 7 K58 4 4
Interest income FE YA 5 (53) (149)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  MENMEREEEB
plant and equipment %= 6 23 49
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —KMBRAREEZ I 6 (5.255) -
Loss on deregistration of branches AR BUAR 2 B8 6 1,036 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRMER R Z Wi 6 - (102)
Depreciation e 6 767 1,460
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 6 114 1,132
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREBE - 3,000
Impairment loss on patents and trademarks S| X 12 R (B 518 - 10,137
Equity-settled share option expense AR S 5 2 B A iE B S 6 150 171
2,843 5,569
Decrease in inventories FERb 170 10,590
Decrease in trade receivables U E 5B FUR 4,028 3,171
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERTRIE © e REM
other receivables JE U IR A AN (771) (2,204)
Decrease in amount due from a related JEW — K BN A
company ZFRIBR D - 5
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JERHE ZEEFIE M, Od) 359 (2,222)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and FEEtE A KM E A Rt
other payables g m,/Ond) (353) 1,277
Decrease in warranty provision 1R PR R (1.324) (6,537)
Increase/(decrease) in post-employment & BiRIKEF
benefits g, CRd) (2) 125
Cash generated from operations KB EIESIR G 4,950 9,774
Interest paid BERFE - (52)
Tax paid EEIE (1,008) (964)
Net cash flows from operating activities L ETEFTSIR € F8E 3,942 8,758
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ # & EBZIRERE
Interest received A E 53 149
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE WE
and equipment B (407) (275)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWME M= L& MH
plant and equipment FT{S k18 18 42
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMB AR RIAE 33 - 103
Net cash outflow from liquidation of —RMBARER A
a subsidiary T ER 34 (3.289) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEEMNE (i)
activities e FH (3.625) 19
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2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
us$'ooo Us$'000
FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EFH RS nRE
Repayment of bank loans BERITER - (1,284)
Dividends paid BERRE (2,560) -
Net cash flows used in financing activities R & EENFTIEIR & F58 (2,560) (1,284)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND Be MRS EEEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS #mnCRid) F58 (2,243) 7,493
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzHReMRESE
of year I8 H 23,674 16,752
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgEFH o E
changes, net pEE=C (478) (571)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRZBASIREEE
OF YEAR JIERE| 20,953 23,674
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBEFEER 2&EH
CASH EQUIVALENTS DT
Cash and bank balances RWERIRITER 20,953 23,674

—B-TEEH HEEBERAR
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Statement of Financial Position

LURI S O

As at 30 April 2010
AT FPHA=1H

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note us$‘ooo us$'o00
B FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EmENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKRE 18 54,912 55,786
Total non-current assets EREEERTE 54,912 55,786
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables J8{43/IE & R EMEWRE 23 31 1
Cash and cash equivalents B4 hBESESEER 24 2,293 2,319
Total current assets MBEEBET 2,324 2,320
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Accruals and other payables JERT B R M E b fE FIE 26 126 25
Total current liabilities mEaEeRE 126 25
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENE EFE 2,198 2,295
Net assets BEFE 57.110 58,081
EQUITY Em
Issued capital BT 30 13,500 13,500
Reserves HE 32(b) 43,610 44,581
TOTAL EQUITY EmyaTa 57,110 58,081

WANG Lu Yen E+%E
Director £

Michel BOURLON
Director 2%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B AR 45 B R E

30 April 2010
—ZT—TFNYA=+H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Linmark Group Limited ("“Company”) is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the "Group”) are principally engaged in
the sales of merchandise and provision of procurement and value-
added services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”) since 10 May
2002. In the opinion of the directors, the holding company of the
Company is Roly International Holdings Ltd., which is incorporated
in Bermuda, and the ultimate holding company is Megastar
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB"),
and International Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an available-for-sale
financial asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars ("US$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
30 April 2010. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Non-controlling interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net assets of
the Company's subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R 5 FfT T

30 April 2010

—T-FTFMYA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs and
new International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
("IFRIC") interpretations for the first time for the current year's
financial statements.

[FRS 1 and IAS 27 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
Amendments of IFRSs and IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements - Cost
of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-
Controlled Entity or Associate

IFRS 2 Amendments ~ Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

IFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 Amendment®  Amendment to IFRS 8 Operating Segments
- Disclosure of information about
segment assets (early adopted)

IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 18 Amendment®  Amendment to Appendix to IAS 18 Revenue

- Determining whether an entity is acting
as a principal or as an agent

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
IAS 32 and IAS 1 Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Presentation and |AS 1

Presentation of Financial Statements
- Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

IFRIC 9 and IAS 39 Amendments to IFRIC 9 Reassessment of
Amendments Embedded Derivatives and
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement - Embedded Derivatives

64
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

—z—

DISCLOSURES (continued)

[FRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

[FRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

[FRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (adopted

from 1 July 2009)

Improvements to Amendments to a number of IFRSs
IFRSs (May 2008)**

* Included in Improvements to IFRSs 2009 (as issued in April 2009).

* The Group adopted all the improvements to IFRSs issued in May 2008
except for the amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations - Plan to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary,
which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of IFRS
7 Amendments, IFRS 8 and IAS 1 (Revised), the adoption of these
new and revised IFRSs and interpretations has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements and there have been
no significant changes to the accounting policies applied in these
financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

()

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The amended standard requires additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by source of inputs using a three level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balances for level 3 fair
value measurements is now required, as well as significant
transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The
amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk
disclosures with respect to derivative transactions and assets
used for liquidity management. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in Note 40 to the financial
statements while the liquidity disclosures are presented in
Note 41 to the financial statements.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 8 replaced IAS 14 Segment Reporting upon its effective
date. The Group concluded that the operating segments
determined in accordance with IFRS 8 are the same as the
business segments previously identified under IAS 14. I[FRS 8
disclosures are shown in Note 4 to the financial statements,
including the related revised comparative information.

IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

The revised standard separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity
includes only details of transactions with owners, with
non-owner changes in equity presented in a reconciliation
of each component of equity. In addition, the standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it
presents all items of recognised income and expense, either
in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group has elected to present two statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs are
as follows: (Continued)

(d) /mprovements to IFRSs

In May 2008, the IASB issued omnibus of amendments to its
standards, primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. The adoption of the following
amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies
but did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removes the
reference to “total interest income" as a component of
finance costs.

° IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
that assets and liabilities which are classified as
held for trading in accordance with [AS 39 are not
automatically classified as current in the statement of
financial position.

° IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the
term "“net selling price” with "fair value less costs to
sell" and the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use.

In addition, items of property, plant and equipment
held for rental that are routinely sold in the ordinary
course of business after rental are transferred to
inventories when rental ceases and they are held for
sale.

° IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Requires that when a parent entity accounts for a
subsidiary at fair value in accordance with IAS 39
in its separate financial statements, this treatment
continues when the subsidiary is subsequently
classified as held for sale.

° IAS 36 Impairment of Assets: When discounted cash
flows are used to estimate "fair value less costs to
sell", additional disclosures (e.g. discount rate and
growth rate used) are required which are consistent
with the disclosures required when the discounted
cash flows are used to estimate "value in use”.
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2.2 CHANGES

FEMA=1A

IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs are
as follows: (Continued)

(d) /mprovements to IFRSs (Continued)

IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising
and promotional activities is recognised as an expense
when the Group either has the right to access the
goods or has received the service.

The reference to there being rarely, if ever, persuasive
evidence to support an amortisation method for
intangible assets other than the straight-line method
has been removed. The Group has reassessed the
useful lives of its intangible assets and concluded that
the straight-line method is still appropriate.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement: (i) sets out a number of changes in
circumstances relating to derivatives that are not
considered to result in reclassification into or out
of the fair value through profit or loss category; (ii)
removes the reference to the designation of hedging
instrument at the segment level; and (iii) requires that
the revised effective interest rate (rather than the
original effective interest rate) calculated on cessation
of fair value hedge accounting should be used for the
remeasurement of the hedged item when paragraph
AG8 of IAS 39 is applicable.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs
and new IFRIC interpretations, that have been issued but are not

2.3 BEMEERER BT BERE
2R

AEEREFEMHHREAALRERIATE
MRAME 18 R A R #R] MR (E /T B R B 75

yet effective, in these financial statements.

[FRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 1 Amendments

[FRS 1 Amendment

|[FRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 3 (Revised)

[FRS 9

IAS 24 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 32 Amendment

|AS 39 Amendment

IFRIC 14 Amendments

[FRIC 17
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

[FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments*

Amendments to Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
IFRS 5 included in Held for Sale and Discontinued
Improvements to Operations - Plan to sell the controlling
IFRSs issued in interest in a subsidiary’

May 2008

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued /Improvements to IFRSs
2009 and Improvements to IFRSs 2010 which set out amendments
to a number of IFRSs primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Under the /Improvements to
IFRSs 2009, the amendments to IFRS 2, IAS 38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC
16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 while the amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17,
IAS 36 and IAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2010 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard or interpretation. Under the
Improvements to IFRSs 2010, the amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
while the amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC
13 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard or interpretation.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

e O R

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration
of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint
venture's operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture;

(c)  an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture's registered capital and is in
a position to exercise significant influence over the joint
venture; or

(d)  an equity investment accounted for in accordance with IAS
39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture's registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESHBEME @»

72

POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entity

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group's interest in a jointly-controlled entity is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly-controlled entity
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the jointly-
controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of a jointly-controlled entity are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company's investment in a jointly-controlled
entity is treated as a non-current asset and is stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees' identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after
1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as an asset, initially measured at
cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b)  the party is an associate;
(c)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

(e)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of 5 years or the
lease terms

3 to 5 years

5 to 10 years

Furniture and equipment
Yacht and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Patents and trademarks

Purchased patents and trademarks have indefinite useful lives and
are stated at cost less any impairment losses. They are tested for
impairment at least annually.

Deferred expenditure

Deferred expenditure represents an amount incurred for renewing
a buying agency agreement and is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised using the straight-line basis
over the three-year period of the buying agency agreement.

Licence rights

Licence rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the licence period. They are initially measured as the fair
value of the consideration given to acquire the licence at the time
of the acquisition, which represents the capitalised present values
of the fixed minimum periodic payments to be made in subsequent
periods.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include available-for-sale asset, cash
and cash equivalent, trade receivables, and deposits and other
receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities.

Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
in other expenses and removed from the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends earned are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets whether
the ability and intention to sell them in the near term are still
appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management's intent to do so
significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to the held-
to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial
asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected
cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event") and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is "significant” or "prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant" is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis and
other valuation models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of merchandise, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  commission income, when the underlying goods procured by
the Group are shipped;

() from the rendering of services, reimbursement income
from customers, handling fee income and inspection and
laboratory testing income, when the services are rendered;
and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated
equally.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

(i)

Pension schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 15% to 20%
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined separately
using the projected unit credit valuation method. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when
the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses
at the end of the previous reporting year exceed 10% of
the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets at the date. These gains and losses are
recognised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the employees participating in the plan.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Pension schemes (Continued)

Defined benefit pension scheme (Continued)

The past service cost is recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. If the benefits vest immediately following
the introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, the past
service cost is recognised immediately.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost
not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out
of which the obligations are to be settled. Plan assets are
assets that are held by a long term employee benefit fund or
qualifying insurance policies. Plan assets are not available to
the creditors of the Group nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value is based on market price information
and in the case of quoted securities it is the published bid
price. The value of any defined benefit asset recognised
is restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet
recognised and the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

An actuarial estimate is made by a professionally qualified
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method, of the present value of the
Group's future defined benefit obligation under the defined
benefit pension plan earned by the employees as at the end
of the reporting period.

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

(i)~ Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an office made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
the jointly-controlled entity are currencies other than the United
States dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period, and their income statements are
translated into United States dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and the jointly-controlled
entity are translated into United States dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and the jointly-controlled
entity which arise throughout the year are translated into United
States dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related amortisation rate (if any) for its
intangible assets (other than goodwill). These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of intangible
assets of similar nature and functions. Actual economic lives may
differ from the estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in amortisable lives and consequently increase or
decrease in amortisation expenses in future periods. The carrying
amount of intangible assets other than goodwill as at 30 April
2010 was nil (2009: US$156,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2010 was US$26,333,000
(2009: US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 16 to the
financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in economic conditions
in places where the Group operates, changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to change in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories as at 30 April
2010 was US$69,000 (2009: US$2,440,000).

Trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit history
of its customers and other debtors and the current market
condition which requires the use of judgements and estimates.
When the expectation on the recoverability of trade and
other receivables is different from the original estimates, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment provisions in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. Management assesses the provision at the end of
each reporting period. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables as at 30 April 2010 was US$5,324,000
(2009: US$18,239,000) and US$6,558,000 (2009: US$5,915,000),
respectively. More details are given in Notes 22 and 23 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination is made. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets as at 30 April 2010 was US$94,000 (2009:
US$86,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial asset

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. At 30 April 2010, no
impairment losses have been recognised for the available-for-sale
financial asset (2009: Nil). The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale financial asset was approximately US$84,000 (2009:
US$84,000). More details are given in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, labels and
consumer electronic products; and

(b)  provision of services including procurement service and
value-added services relating to the procurement agency
business.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations except that interest income, finance
costs, restructuring costs, impairment losses, gain on liquidation
and disposal of investments, loss on deregistration of branches,
share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity as well as head office
and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REFSWER )

Sales of Provision
merchandise of services Total
EmEE R R &5t
Year ended 30 April 2010 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BE—Z-ZFNA=1THLEE FER FER FER
Segment revenue: STEWE
Revenue from external customers 2R EBINAZF 2 Wz 75,968 17,558 93,526
Segment results DHEEE 2,900 817 3,717
Interest income FE YA 53
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —ZRME R GEH 2 W 5,255
Loss on deregistration of branches %A B/ BUH R 2 B 18 (1,036)
Restructuring costs HHER (1,362)
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled JE(E —RELEIEHIE &
entity ZEE 4)
Corporate and other unallocated ~— PR EMADE
expenses 2 (566)
Profit before tax B A5 Bl A 6,057
Income tax expense PGB (138)
Profit for the year FEm F 5919
Other segment information: HihpE|EHR :
Depreciation wE 340 427 767
Amortisation of intangible assets — #EFZ & E B i 30 84 114
Capital expenditures BEARFAL 206 201 407
Impairment of trade receivables BUNE SR FURE 31 355 386
Product warranty provision EmirAEE 77 - 77
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REIEER @

Sales of Provision
merchandise of services Total
& o S RHARTS &&t
Year ended 30 April 2009 Us$'000 us$'ooo Us$'000
HEZTNFOA=THILEFE FET FET TFET
Segment revenue: SR
Revenue from external customers R BEINAR P 2 Uzs 175,204 20,558 195,762
Segment results DHEEE 3,184 1,842 5,026
Interest income FEMA 149
Restructuring costs EHEA (1,719)
Impairment loss on goodwill R EE R - (3,000) (3,000)
Impairment loss on patents and
trademarks SR R EIERERE (10,137) - (10,137)
Finance costs B%EA (52)
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled FE{5—ZX AT HIE L2
entity B8 (4)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBRE W 102
Corporate and other unallocated
expenses TEREMAS RS (550)
Loss before tax M ELRIE 1R (10,185)
Income tax expense PR (2,069)
Loss for the year FEEE (12,254)
Other segment information: Hihpa@EHR
Depreciation e 868 592 1,460
Amortisation of intangible assets L& E Y 127 1,005 1,132
Capital expenditures BRI 63 212 275
Impairment of trade receivables BUNE SR FORE 545 419 964
Product warranty provision =R RS 3,903 - 3,903
Geographical information 35 & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RBEIIRZFFEzZWz=
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
USs$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Australia SEM 26,828 37,140
Europe BOM 20,328 98,954
Africa FEM 19,275 22,001
North America =M 11,590 16,232
Hong Kong EB 2,085 2,753
Others Hip 13,420 18,682
93,526 195,762
The revenue information above is based on the location of Faili = ER DBRBEEF M E
the customers. Fl o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REIEER @

Geographical information (Continued) I ER (@)
(b) Non-current assets (b) ERBEE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Hong Kong &5F 26,827 27,338
Europe BN - 265
Others Hip 307 269
27,134 27,872
The non-current assets information above is based on LHiIEREBEEER IIRIBEEEME
the location of assets and excludes an available-for-sale W2 NEE—BAHHESHE
financial asset and deferred tax assets. ERBEERIBEE °
Information about major customers ERTEREFZEHR
Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or REXFERF (BERZERPHAEEKE
more of the Group's revenue is set out below: 1003k A ) 2 Wz 5)an T
Operating segment 2010 2009
bR ] —E-=5F —EENF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Customer A Sales of merchandise 19,217 21,983
ZPA A miEE
Customer B Sales of merchandise 19,008 25,168
=FB EmiEE
Customer C Sales of merchandise 12,834 17,443
=PC EmiHE
Customer D Sales of merchandise - 43,142
=ED i E
51,059 107,736
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WERHEMEBA

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net REBEZWRTAAEEEERE  NiEE
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and HE@mBRRERESITNE 2 BEEFEE
trade discounts; commission income and the value of services e RARREREHER -
rendered.
An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: e R EAMMAZ 2T ¢
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
us$'ooo Us$'o00
FEx FE7T
Revenue W 2%
Sales of merchandise HmiEE 75,967 175,204
Commission income HBa A 17,422 20,285
Rendering of services IRER 137 273
93,526 195,762
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income RITFEHBA 53 149
Reimbursement income from customers RERFPRERBA 34 67
Handling fee income FEBIA 233 714
Inspecting and laboratory test income w5 N EBRER A 411 404
Compensation from customers kERPZHEE 1,200 -
Others Eh 594 661
2,525 1,995
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6.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. PFRBLATEF(BE)

AREZKRBARETN,(BE) DENR

(crediting): (BT A) AT &8 :
2010 2009
—EB-EF ZZETNF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B e FERx FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEZKAK 65,950 149,289
Cost of services provided ER AR 2 KA 1,250 10,534
- including product warranty - BEERRA
expenses i 2 27 77 3,903
Depreciation e 15 767 1,460
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEH 16 14 1,132
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: #£%fH& N HIKALE
MERK -
Furniture and equipment NS E i 136 172
Office premises and staff quarters WAEBEMRET
B\E 1,584 1,729
1,720 1,901
Auditors' remuneration ZE BN &
Audit services BRI 398 403
Others Hip 102 23
500 426
Employee benefit expense EERANAX
(including directors’ (BIEEEHS
remuneration - Note 9): —PiEE 9) :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e UM R 15,757 18,353
Staff welfare and benefits BT kBt 1,507 2,229
Equity-settled share option LR EE BRI
expense i 52 150 171
Pension scheme contributions® BHRE B R
- defined contribution scheme — TREMHNEE 307 324
- defined benefit plans — EFEEFET & 81 174
17,802 21,251
Foreign exchange differences, net M 3, = BB 528 194 522
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 2 IR FRE 22 386 964
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and  HEWZE - BE &
equipment REEE ZEBE 23 49
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KHEAF
2 Wa 33 - (102)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —RB ARG
Z W 34 (5.255) -
Loss on deregistration of branches S2/NSI L=V i
Z B8R 1,036 -

At 30 April 2010, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce
its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2009: Nil).
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7.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PATENTS AND
TRADEMARKS AND GOODWILL

In the prior year, the Group recognised an impairment charge
of US$10,137,000 in connection with patents and trademarks
of Dowry Peacock Group Limited (“Dowry Peacock”), a 60%
owned subsidiary of the Company, and an impairment charge of
US$3,000,000 on goodwill of ISO International (Holdings) Limited,
a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company. The charges were made
based on the results of impairment tests for the patents and
trademarks and goodwill using their value in use in accordance
with IAS 36.

ENREEREERERSR

REFE - ANE&EBE R AR B ¥ B 60%H &=
Z Mt B A &) Dowry Peacock Group Limited
([ Dowry Peacock]) Z FF| K i iR R E
X [110,137,0005 7T © W LA R 7] &2 & M &
/NA] 1SO International (Holdings) Limited < &
BRI E X H3,000,000% 7T © ZEXHTY
RIFER 2R FE365mFAERF 2 E
BEFETZENREEREE ZBERG
HERMED °

FINANCE COSTS k&R
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBERASWTAT
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
US$'000 us$'000
Group rEE FEx FET
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other loans BERAFALEER
wholly repayable within five years LHITER - BER
HEMERZFE - 52

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EEFHM
AEERE ENRAREERFERBIF 161
FRETHRECESHMMAT :

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

US$'000 US$'000

Group REH FEx FET

Fees we 156 166
Other emoluments: Hin i< -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYAE 1,093 1,321

Performance related bonus FIRHMHTEAL 67 67

Employee share option benefits BB IRERT 62 84

Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHEE 63 51

1,285 1,523

Total ,%%‘-I— 1,441 1,689
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEFM @
During the year, certain directors were granted share options in FERN - ATEFEHREERASEMEMR
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option ZIRBER AR N RERESTEIET 2B
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in o E—SFBFHNMBEREMN T3 - Z
Note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options EHEREZ AFEDARL BHER - I
which has been recognised in the income statement over the ERGEBHANEREERARER - Mt AKX
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the FEVBREZSBNEBERLEXZE
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is EHIIREA o
included in the above directors' remuneration disclosures.
The emoluments of each director are set out below: BRESZZHMESETIAT
Salaries, Employee
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus benefits contributions remuneration
e 28 B3] E& Bikg
e RENNE HHEL BREEN SEHR BEH
HZ-Z-3F US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Year ended 30 April 2010 MA=tHLEE FEx FET FET TET TET TET
Executive directors: YTES:
WANG Lu Yen IHE - 332 - 6 10 348
Michel BOURLON (i) Michel BOURLON (i) - 661 67 20 48 796
KHOO Kim Cheng R - 100 - 20 5 125
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
WONG Wai Ming =EH 33 - - 6 - 39
Mark HSU (i) RE (i) 24 - - - - 24
Independent non-executive directors: BV FEHTES :
WANG Arthur Minshiang ThE 33 - - 4 - 37
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HENT 33 - - 2 - 35
Jakob Jacobus Jakob Jacobus
Koert TULLENERS (iv) Koert TULLENERS (iv) 33 - - 4 - 37
156 1,093 67 62 63 1441
BE-TTNF
Year ended 30 April 2009 MAZTHIEE
Executive directors: HTES:
WANG Lu Yen IHE - 354 - - 10 364
Michel BOURLON (i) Michel BOURLON (i) - 195 67 12 15 289
KHOO Kim Cheng R - 100 - 22 5 127
Peter Loris SOLOMON (iii) Peter Loris SOLOMON (jii) - 672 - 42 21 735
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
WONG Wai Ming =EH 33 - - 4 - 37
Mark HSU (i) A (i) 33 - - - - 33
Independent non-executive directors: BV FEHTES :
WANG Arthur Minshiang TER 33 - - 2 - 35
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEDT 33 - - 2 - 35
Jakob Jacobus Jakob Jacobus
Koert TULLENERS (v} Koert TULLENERS (v) 33 - - - - 3
KWOK Tai Ki () SHE () 1 _ _ _ _ 1
166 1321 67 84 51 1,689
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9.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes:
(i) Mr. Michel BOURLON was appointed an executive director and the chief
executive officer with effect from 12 January 2009.

(if) Mr. Mark HSU resigned as a non-executive director with effect from 18
January 2010.

(i) Mr. Peter Loris SOLOMON resigned as an executive director and the chief
executive officer with effect from 1 August 2008.

(iv) Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS was appointed an independent non-
executive director with effect from 5 May 2008.

(v) Mr. KWOK Tai Ki resigned as an independent non-executive director with
effect from 5 May 2008.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2009: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2010, an emolument of US$67,000
was paid to Mr. Michel BOURLON (2009: US$67,000) and as at
30 April 2010, an emolument of US$66,000 was receivable by Mr.
Bourlon as inducement to join the Group (2009: US$133,000).

Pursuant to an offer letter dated 4 November 2008 from RGS
Holdings Limited ("RGS"), a controlling shareholder of the
Company, to Mr. Michel BOURLON, in consideration of Mr. Bourlon
entering into an employment agreement with the Company for his
employment as the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company, RGS had agreed to grant options to Mr. Bourlon
to purchase from RGS up to 6,500,000 ordinary shares of the
Company subject to and upon the terms and conditions stated
therein. As at 30 April 2010, Mr. Bourlon had exercised his options
to acquire 4,333,333 shares of the Company from RGS, while an
option to acquire 2,166,667 shares of the Company from RGS
remained outstanding.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 30 April 2010, no
emolument was paid to or receivable by any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2009: Nil).
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2009: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2009: two) non-director, highest paid employees for the

10. AU BREEHMES
ENANESHEMNES BERL (ZTTh
F =) TF  EfesFEEN EXBiEE9 -
FREB=U (ZBEZNE : ML) &=
SMHIEEEREMFIFIBUOT ¢

year are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZTENF

us$'ooo US$'000

Group TEE FEx FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBNEMR R 932 664
Performance related bonuses RIBH RS 40 -
Employee share option benefits e BRI 35 18
Pension scheme contributions BRIRETEIE R 19 17
1,026 699

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands presented in Hong

Kong dollars ("HK$") is as follows:

s CAETZ25) BT S E & &= Hr
HEEEREBAZRNT

Number of employees

EEA™
2010 2009
—E-F —ETNF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 7C £ 2,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to US$257,069) (FEEM192,802%E L2
257,06937C ) - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,00178 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to US$385,604) (% R257,070E LE
385,6043< 7T ) 3 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T 23,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$385,605 to US$449,871) (F%72385,6055 L&
4498713 7T) - 1
3 2
Save as disclosed in Note 9 above, during the year ended 30 April bR BRI EEEIN RBIZ_E—F

2010, no emolument was paid to or receivable by any of the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

FUA=THLFE SEAEA ALK
SHMEE X NAERMNEMMEESNEA
S INBE AN 5 [ B 2 AR ) S AF D B B 15
(ZZTNF &) -
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7.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

R xX
EBFEBRIBIEFAREBEELE 2G5!
FE R B 0E F4%16.500 (ZZZ NF : 16.50)
IR BB - BB AIIMNDE Z ERTR
mAHBRREAEEEERMERR 2R
IR EETE -

2010 2009

—E-=F T NF

US$'000 us$'000

Group KEH FEx FET
Current - Hong Kong BNER — &%

Charge for the year AREEFRL 197 1,008
Current - Outside Hong Kong BVER — B AN R 126 72
(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years BAEFE (BEEE)

BET e (177) 38
Deferred (Note 20) IERE (PEE 20) (8) 951
Total tax charge for the year REERIAR S B 138 2,069

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

ERRBRARRRERZHMBREME
BERRAEERRAEORBANER
(BR) < HERXBIEERTRAE M
AR ZHERMT ¢

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Us$'o00 US$'000
Group TEE TER TET
Profit/(loss) before tax BrRELALEF (E5E) 6,057 (10,185)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% 16500 E EMEFE
(2009: 16.5%) HMB (ZZTZTNF : 16.5%) 999 (1.681)
Effect on opening deferred tax of decrease in rates 5% 5 K E HAM IR LR 1E 2
B - 68
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT AR B HAR IR
previous periods 2R (177) 38
Effect of different rates for companies operating REMAEEREEEBTRN
in other jurisdictions NAEATRRE 2 & (34) (77)
Income not subject to tax HARBUA (3,090) (2,933)
Expenses not deductible for tax RATHIB R 2 952 4,539
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B ABEHM . RIBEE (162) (33)
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 FIEEE 1,485 1,937
Others HAh 165 21
Tax charge IR 138 2,069

“T-TEEH HEREERAT
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12.

13.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 30 April 2010 is approximately US$1,439,000
(2009: US$8,663,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 32(b)).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, adjusted to reflect the interest on the share
options. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amount
presented for the year ended 30 April 2009 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount presented.

12.

13.

RRRERARMGEEF

HE T ZTFWA=1+HIEFE  ARQ
AR AFEAE 456 5 F1%91,439,000% 7T (=
ZZTLF : 8,663,000 7T) BEIFEAR BB
REFEE (HEE32(b)) ©

BREF (FHE)
BREXBH,(BR) DREAARLE
BAES A ARGEFERR(BE) kF
REBTERBZ NETHRAH -

BREERNIREBEA R R E BT
BARGFRERANGE  LEFHBARBR
REREZED - FTERAERZEBK
INAE I By A B B B AR BN B P 2 8
ZFACHTERRZHE  ARREB
B N4 19 B A P B B HSE7E ) B Ak
R BITEK AR AD T BT BEET

AR R ARITEE 2 BB IR S AT 25 B IR E A
ER:BEARBEYE RAUBHIHEE
“EZNFNA=ZTHEFERIZER
ERBESBELTE -
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13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13. BREF (FH8) @

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is BRERNRESAN (EBE) RENLT
based on: HIBFE :
2010 2009
—E2-=F —ETENF
Earnings/(loss) BA(E8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity HEBIRERNETETERA
holders of the Company, used in the basic i NSRS g
earnings per share calculation (US$'000) BB ABGERN S (BE)
(F%=7T) 5,919 (8,350)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EHER Z INEFHE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HEGRERERN (FE)

in issue during the year used in the basic BT AR 2 FNE 81T
earnings/(loss) per share calculation ('000) Em RS 2 InAE S g
(FpE) 674,995 674,995

Effect of dilution - weighted average number of E& 522 — L @AL 2 ANHE

ordinary shares: F158r -
Share options BB R 12,881 -
687,876 674,995
14. DIVIDENDS 14. BRE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
US$'000 Us$'000
FER FET
Interim, paid of 0.75 HK cent (2009: Nil) BT HR B EA
per ordinary share T EA%0.75/8 1
(ZEZNF : &) 651 -
Final, proposed, of 0.75 HK cent (2009: 2.2 ¥R KB BT
HK cents) per ordinary share EEA%0.758 110
—ZETAF : 2.2780) 655 1,891
Special, proposed, of 6 HK cents (2009: Nil) FOR R R % B AR m AR
per ordinary share 68Nl (ZZ2ETNF &) 5,237 -
6,543 1,891
At a meeting held on 15 July 2010, the Company's directors E_Z—ZF+tATHBRTHNEEHEL
proposed a final dividend of 0.75 HK cent per ordinary share and ARREEEREE_T—ZFWOA=F
a special dividend of 6 HK cents per ordinary share in respect of HIEFE 2 RERE AERIE BAR0.7571(L
the year ended 30 April 2010. These proposed dividends are not REFRIR S AEREBRBI - ZEHIK
reflected as dividends payable in these financial statements, but & B0 AR 5% S B S R P IR R AT AR
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the B EfgRkMARZE _T——FMNA="1
year ending 30 April 2011. HIFFERBAENDIK
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BERRXE

Yacht and
Leasehold Furniture and motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE
MELE KRRRE BERSRE &&t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group rEH TER TER FTEn TER
30 April 2010 —2-EfWA=+AH
At 1 May 2009: RZZEENFRA—A:
Cost kA 2,574 5,040 664 8,278
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (2,288) (4,251) (375) (6,914)
Net carrying amount REFE 286 789 289 1,364
At 1 May 2009, net of RZZEZNFREA—R -
accumulated depreciation Mk 2 E 286 789 289 1,364
Additions N 254 153 - 407
Disposals HE (36) (5) - (41)
Depreciation provided
during the year REFREITE (258) (432) (77) (767)
Exchange realignment [ i, % 12 21 - 33
Liquidation of a subsidiary —KKBARER
(Note 34) (Pf3E 34) (66) (144) - (210)
At 30 April 2010, net of RZZE—ZFNA=FAH "
accumulated depreciation MK 2HTE 192 382 212 786
At 30 April 2010: RZZ—ZFMA=+A:
Cost BEN 2,570 4,855 664 8,089
Accumulated depreciation L E (2,378) (4,473) (452) (7,303)
Net carrying amount REFE 192 382 212 786
30 April 2009 —E2ENEWAZTA
At 1 May 2008: R-EZENFHA—B:
Cost D %N 2,763 5,486 669 8,918
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,662) (4,156) (342) (6,160)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,101 1,330 327 2,758
At 1 May 2008, net of RZZEZENFHEA—R
accumulated depreciation Mk 2 E 1,101 1,330 327 2,758
Additions = 107 104 64 275
Disposals HE (53) (1) (27) (91)
Depreciation provided
during the year REFREBINE (848) (541) 71 (1,460)
Exchange realignment 0 5 % (21) (93) (4) (118)
At 30 April 2009, net of RZZEZNFMNA=TAH -
accumulated depreciation MK ZHTE 286 789 289 1,364
At 30 April 2009: RZZZNFHA=1H :
Cost BN 2,574 5,040 664 8,278
Accumulated depreciation Z2InE (2,288) (4,251) (375) (6,914)
Net carrying amount REFE 286 789 289 1,364
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BEEE

Deferred Patents and Licence

Goodwill expenditure trademarks rights Total
BE BEEHx BENREE B ast
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

Group rEE TER TER TER TER TER
30 April 2010 Z2-EfMA=+H
Cost at 1 May 2009, net of accumulated RZZZNFRA—BZ
amortisation and impairment A MR RETEHERRE 26333 84 - 72 26,489
Amortisation provided during the year NS R Y - (84) - (30) (114)
Exchange realignment (& 5 SR - - - 10 10
Liquidation of a subsidiary (Note 34) —KMBATER (5t 34) - - - (52) (52)
At 30 April 2010 RZE-TFMA=+H 26,333 - - - 26333
At 30 April 2010: RZZE-TFMA=+AH:
Cost D% 34,827 - - - 34827
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ~ Z&5H# # KOR(E (8,494) - - - (8,494)
Net carrying amount BREFE 26,333 - - - 26,333
30 April 2009 “EENFMA=TH
Cost at 1 May 2008, net of accumulated RZZEZNERA—RZ
amortisation and impairment AR - MBR 2R ORE 29,333 1,089 12,549 252 43,223
Amortisation provided during the year NFE R - (1,005) - (127) (1,132)
Impairment during the year FARE (3,000) - (10,137) - (13,137)
Exchange realignment IR - - (2,412) (53) (2,465)
At 30 April 2009 RZZEZNEMA=1H 26,333 84 - 72 26,489
At 30 April 2009: RZZEENFMA=FH:
Cost AR 34,827 3,014 71,920 354 110,115
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T KR E (8,494) (2,930) (71,920) (282) (83,626)
Net carrying amount BREFE 26,333 84 - 72 26,489
Impairment testing of intangible assets BREERENR
Intangible assets have been allocated to the following cash- EBREEEPREETIRESEELSEN T8
generating units, which are reportable segments, for impairment AIRMEB D) (ERERH :
testing:
o Sales of merchandise; and e HmEE: R
e Provision of services. o IRMARTS o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

17.

Impairment testing of intangible assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for the
period covered by the approved budget. Key assumptions include
the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, long term growth rates and
selection of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to determine the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes

BVEE W
BREERENR @
R BT KE SR DREEER
hEEETE  EATERMNATEERE
E}]Hﬁﬁﬁfgkkﬁ%/ﬁ{/ﬁﬂj IR & m=TE R E
c ERBEHEREFEAHEAZEESR
;i‘ﬁﬁ B E R KEBRE LA - TERR
BREEERENEZARER  RREXR
xRN RAZBRXRFR K 2 E
BE-EEEREIRBREBRLRANEFER
BEkMSERAHCVBES - RETFEHR
enEBRAMKAZIFERIFFEEL
FIEr - T EERER ﬁz@]ﬁm—riﬁiuwi
BRABEARTE - BeRnERBARBOIT

to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow B[EB7% (ZEZTNLE : 10%) °
projections. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 7% (2009: 10%).
The carrying amount of intangible assets allocated to each of the PRESHESEEBEUNEBEREEZERRA
cash-generating units is as follows: BEAT :
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
BmEE RERE &gt
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Z2-%F —TTNF ZB-BF —TTNF ZB-BF _TTNHF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
Group r5E Txrn FE Txrn FE Txrn FTE
Goodwill kS 26,333 26,333 - - 26,333 26,333
Deferred expenditure EIERS - - - 84 - 84
Licence rights - United Kingdom — #3F#& — B - 72 - - - 72
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 17. THEESREE
2010 2009
—E2-2F —EENF
US$'000 Us$'000
Group TEE FEx FET
Club membership, at fair value grrgs (RATE) 84 84

The fair value of the club membership is determined with reference
to the price quoted by the relevant club.

EMERNAFENK2EEHEEMZE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. RMIB AT ZIRE

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

uUS$'000 US$'000

Company AT FER FET
Unlisted shares, at cost K EmMBS GRKA) 9,987 9,987
Due from subsidiaries Y= NGIE L] 44,925 45,799
54,912 55,786

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand or within one year. The carrying
amounts of these amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to

their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

FEUH B AR RIA R EER - 2B RAR
ERFIN—FREE - ZFERUHBLF
AR REEEE A FEREE -

TEMBRFFBOT

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value of to the Company
incorporation/registration issued ordinary share/ AR FEERET AL

Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL ERR BROZBERRE

£ ey AMBRAEE E# ME  FEEH

Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
ERARRES 1% RERR

CU Packaging & Design (BVI) Limited? British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Dormant
REARRES E LEEH

Dowry Peacock Group Limited United Kingdom (GBP300 - 60  Investment holding
£ 300545 REEK

eServices (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
REABRES E LEEH

eServices Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
0 100,000 7 TEXH

Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
REABRRES E REER

Golden Rules Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding

mEARAT BA BT REARR

—B-TEEH HEEBERAR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18

. RIEB QAR Z2’E (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value of to the Company
incorporation/registration issued ordinary share/ AN FEEREF DL
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMEY /R BRTEBRRA
£ Ben EfRAEE EE B TEEHR
IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
KERARES %7 wALR
IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
RBEBRES 1%L EEXEY
IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
e 287 HEEH
Inspire World Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
ERARAT 5k iy LRENG
International Laboratory Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory
ERBERBERAA B% 18T services
RERTRS
IS0 International (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
KB4BRES 17 ERLH
IS0 International (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of technical support
B 100/87T and management services,
and trading of home
lifestyle consumer
electronic products
RERMERERRY
REEREETEMES
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding and
RRAEMRES 50,000 7T procurement agent
REERRRBAE
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
B 10,0007 RERE
Linmark Development (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Procurement agent
RERBRES E RERIE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RMBRARIZRE (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value of to the Company
incorporation/registration issued ordinary share/ AN FEEREF DL
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMEYL/ ERR BRTEBRRA
£ gewl EfRAEE EX B TEER
Linmark Electronics Limited*# United Kingdom (GBP12,500 - 60  Dormant
(In liquidation) HE 12,5005 88 BEENK
(&)
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
W& (F%) ERAF BE WL procurement agent
REERRRERE
Linmark International (Bangladesh) Ltd.*  Bangladesh Taka20,000 - 100 Procurement agent
)l 20000~ AR
Linmark International (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding,
Limited EE 200,000/ 7T procurement agent and
WEER (F8) RO trading of merchandise
REER  RERAER
BEmES
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy People's Republic of China  RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
(Shenzhen) Limited** hE AR #1,500,0007C consultancy and product
MWEBmELSHR O BRAE development services
RETISRERAR
EmAER%
Linmark (UK) Limited United Kingdom GBP100 - 100 Dormant
R 100545 TEXH
Linmark Westman Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands ussn 100 - Investment holding
ABRBARES NET REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
MEERAA BB 1T TELHK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
AEEBARES 1%L TEXH
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,0007 70 TEEH

“TRFEFR MEEEERQA
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. RKIBLARIZ®RE (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value of to the Company
incorporation/registration issued ordinary share/ AR TEERET I
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRT ERR BRTEBERRAE
£ TEmy aMBRAEE E# MiE IEEHR
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom (GBP45,000 - 60  Dormant
B 45,0005 4% TEXH
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
EEERLA BE iy TEXH
Tamarind Agency Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
SBEBRES 1% REEKR
Tamarind International Holdings British Virgin Islands Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited REEBRES E REER
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
5k BT trading of merchandise
REERRARES
Tamarind Marketing Services (Macao Macao MOP100,000 - 100 Trading of merchandise
Commercial Offshore) Limited* B 1000008 % HmES
AEHTERE (RFRFRERS)
2SN
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) Limited** People's Republic of China  RMB5,500,000 - 100 Procurement agent and
AEMLES (L8) BRAE™ ol AR #5,500,0007C trading of merchandise
RBRERERES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd.* Bangladesh Taka20,000 - 100 Provision of market trend
Eayika 20,000 F consultancy services
R TIZAR B RA AR
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding and
HEHRRES E5 provision of market trend
consultancy services
REBRRRETZHR
R EE
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
B R RAER A A WET provision of market trend

consultancy services and

trading of merchandise
RERR - REDEHR

EGZAREREARE S
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18.

KRB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value of to the Company
incorporation/registration issued ordinary share/ AR TEEREF I
Name and operations registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMRL ERR BRIEBERRA
1 T EfRFHE EE BE IEEHR
Trend Xpress (S) Pte. Limited* Singapore 5$2 - 100 Dormant
wng BRI TEXH
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Limited Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
% Baht5,880,000 and REHRE
preference shares
Baht6,120,000
L i#1R5,880000% % K&
B 516,120,005 6k
Westman (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
CiBIIb 200,000 A3 7T REEHE
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
BBERAT 0 100,000/ 7 TEXH

& Young global network.

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst

* CU Packaging & Design (BVI) Limited was struck off during the year ended 30 !

April 2010.

%

b uli)= NGk e b S el 5 Y A=
I E b 227k & 5t B RIS P R ERABAR K B PTEAZ

CU Packaging & Design (BVI) LimitedEREZE—F
—ZFWNA=TRHIEFENEH -

The

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and Tamarind Trading
(Shanghai) Limited are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the law of the People's Republic of China. They are not audited by Ernst &
Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

Linmark Electronics Limited was put in administration on 28 July 2009 which
was converted into creditors' voluntary liquidation on 25 January 2010.

Trend Xpress (S) Pte. Limited was struck off during the year ended 30 April
2010.

above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

“T-TEEH HEREBERAT

*‘ MEFRELSER RI) ERAARKELE
5 (£8) ARABTIRETBEAZEMRINE
BAME - ZFARWIFMBEBLKEFTEY
PSRRI B At Ze ok & =t BT R 76 T 2 BRABAE K B A
EiZ o

# Linmark Electronics Limited R —ZTZENFLA =1+
NE#EE YR —_Z2—ZFF-—F_THHAER
EREAEEER -

+ Trend Xpress (S) Pte. LimitedBEREE_T—ZTF
MA=+RHIEFERESH -

ERFINZARAMBRARINESTRASH
AEERBREERRVEURBRAKEEE
FEITBHNIHBLRR - EFZRA - &
IR B AR ZFIE @< RIEBBRIT
Ko
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 19. RA—XHAFEZEFERZ2RE

ENTITY
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH FEx FET
Unlisted investments, at cost REMZRE (BRAA) - -
Share of net assets EIEFEE 15 19
15 19
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEEHEE ZFBOT ¢
Percentage of
aN
Place of iladakaa:
Particulars of incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit
Name issued shares held registration interest power sharing  Principal activities
BEERT ML,
Z8 R 2 F#1E aF i it BE FrERE REE BIIE FEXR
CSC Consultancy Registered capital People's Republic 50 50 50  Provision of business
Co., Ltd. of RMB1,500,000 of China information, management
bR IRIE A HMEX HE consulting and social
BRAF AR #1,500,0007T compliance services
RUXBER  BEFEAL
HEEERETAES
PR
The investment in a jointly-controlled entity is indirectly held by R—RAREFHEBZRETIAAREME
the Company. BRA -
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED 19. RA—RHLGFEEZEHERB 2R E @)

ENTITY (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREMAEELREH TS TEER
information of the Group's jointly-controlled entity: BE :
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
us$'ooo US$'000
FEx FET
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's assets and FE(5 HEEIEHITEE 2 EE K&
liabilities: afg:
Current assets mENEE 17 21
Non-current assets EREEE 2 2
Current liabilities DEAE=RET (4) (4)
Net assets FEE 15 19
Share of the jointly-controlled entity's results: FEL RIS TS - 4
Operating expenses R (4) (4)
Loss after tax brii2 1R (4) (4)
20. DEFERRED TAX 20. EERIE
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities/(assets) FRAAEEZEEHRBEGE (BE) 2 &
during the year are as follows: BT
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Decelerated  Decelerated
tax tax
depreciation  depreciation Tax Tax
allowances  allowances losses osses Total Total
HEBE  RENE
FERE WELRE  HEER  TEEA CHS =l
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZB-ZF _TTNE ZB-BF _TTNEF ZB-BE _TT)NF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SE TEL FER TEn TEn FET
At beginning of year REA (88) (27) - (1,196) (88) (1223)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o ERRUEF TR/
the income statement during (;t\) ZEIERE
the year (Note 11) (BfzE 11) 8) (65) - 1016 (8) 951
Exchange differences ERES - 4 - 180 - 184
Gross deferred tax assets at end RELRZ
of year BERHEEELS (96) (88) - - (96) (88)

“TRFEFR MEEEERQA
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 20. EEBIE (9)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEEE
Accelerated Accelerated

tax depreciation  tax depreciation

allowances allowances Total Total
i i
BEfERE WEERE &t At
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-BF ZTTHNF Z2-BF CZIEThF
us$'oo0 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER FET TEn FET
At beginning of year REH) 2 2 2 2
Deferred tax credited to the income  FRRUEERBPFALZ
statement during the year (Note 11) EEFIE (Fiz 11) - - - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities atend ~ RAFHRZ
of year BEERIER GRS 2 2 2 2
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and RABEZ2Y  ETEERBEEEREED
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. BN R T EHE o AT DRt B R ¥R
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the B REL 2 BETRIBAE R D AT
Group for financial reporting purposes:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
US$'000 us$'o00
FEx FET
Deferred tax assets BLEHIBEE (96) (88)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERBRE 2 2
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE R BRARER 2
the consolidated statement of financial position IEAEFIIE A E I EE (94) (86)
21. INVENTORIES 21. B8
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
US$'000 Us$'000
Group REH FErn FEIT
Finished goods RUAK TR 69 2,440
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22. ERE SR

REEHR BURBZEREEREHZ
FREIRDOMTIAE -

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF

Us$'000 us$'oo0

Group REH FEx FET
Within 30 days 30K AN 3,535 6,256
31 to 60 days 31E260K 1,132 3,607
61 to 90 days 61290k 474 1,624
91 to 365 days 915365k 440 7,146
Over 1 year HBim1F 994 5,903
6,575 24,536

Impairment JE (1,251) (6,297)
5,324 18,239

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed reqgularly by senior management. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The carrying amount of the trade receivables
approximates to its fair values.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

ANEFHREF2EZGBEREEUEESN
BT WHEF—REWESRKEMNRE -
EEH—RAEOEIKX - BFETZFHA R
SEERE - AEBEERKE HAKE ZE
WK TB 45 BRI YRR EE BB S
M UEREREEERR - 2REEET
BB RRHhEE  EBRESERD
TaAle - BB SRR ZETREEEAN
FEEE -

YW E SRR REREZSHNT :

2010 2009

—E-=F —ZETNF

us$'ooo us$'000

Group rEH FEx FET
At beginning of year RFH] 6,297 6,235
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) ERRBEBE (M e6) 386 964
Amount written off as uncollectible WsH AT IR E 2 OB (5,508) (700)
Exchange differences [EH =58 76 (202)
At end of year RELR 1,251 6,297

“T-TEEH HEREERAT
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BIRE SR (@)
The above provisions are for individually impaired trade receivables LB T A R E FE N E 5 R BE
which relate to customers that were in financial difficulties and o ZERIKE 5 AR BB B N E
only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The 2B P A& TE AR & AT U E &R e YR
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements I8 o REEH ZEARIWART B EME T
over these balances. sk BB E ISR {5 S5
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered REBEREZIEKRE ZERZ KRR DT
to be impaired is as follows: W
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
US$'000 us$'000
Group AEH FEx FET
Neither past due nor impaired I e B SORU (B 2,448 8,837
Less than 3 months past due wmE DR =1 A 2,806 3,012
3 to 6 months past due wmH = 2@ A 66 3,585
Over 6 months past due wHARR BN E A 4 2,805
5,324 18,239
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a 7 f s8 BR SR B 2 JE R IE S R K E TR
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no B RERPLMIMAEAREE

recent history of default.

118

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number 460 HA (B 3 SRR (B 2 FE 4R R 18 B — HE R R
of independent customers that have a good track record with the SEERNTERECBYEFEH - 1B
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company BRATKE  NAREFRR/BANEH
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary HERELRERE BEREEEZLES
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant RNEF  ARRBRAZEHERT2EE -

change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

AEEUZFERLAFEEMNERR -

K EHEMIREERE -
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BARIE - RERHMEBWKIE
Group Company
rEH ¥ /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —_TITNF ZB-FF —ZTThF
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TER FET TER FET
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 322 748 31 -
Deposits b 542 646 - -
Other receivables H b FhoE 6,558 5915 - 1
7,422 7,309 31 1

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

A EEEYEBASORE - 57 A LA &R
Z & BE B BT Y RSBk 2 R UG
AR -

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. BERRESEEER
Group Company
%M AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNHF ZT-TF —TTNF
UsS$'oo00 US$'000 UsS$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Cash and bank balances WL RIBITER 20,953 23,674 2,293 2,319

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
approximately US$299,000 (2009: US$363,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under People's
Republic of China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances
approximate to their fair values.

—“2-TEEH MEEEERAR

RIBEHR  REFBUARE AR
B2 IRE RIRITHF4299,000% T (=&
T NF 1 363,000E7T) e ARBTAHHE
BAHME - A BRIBFPEZINEE
BIEPI R EE SERMNEEERTE - A
EENBBERBETINE S IRER 2R
TBARBHBABEMEE -

ROTFEREEFERTERNRFEZ T
MEFE - EHEMERZERYH—HB
EZEANE  BIEARKEZASRESH
2ME @ RERHEBFRZFERERA
B RITREFEDNERRBEIENTRL
EERFRT RERRTEFZIEEE
EENHERS °
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25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BB SRX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RMEHR ENESERREZAHZ
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RECHITUT -

2010 2009

—EB-EF —EENEF

USs$'000 us$'000

Group rEE FEx FET

Within 30 days 30KLAIA 3,170 4,322

31 to 60 days 31E60K 1,496 2,303

61 to 90 days 61E90K 350 1,290

91 to 365 days 91%E 365K 74 10,598

Over 1 year Bl 281 3,769

5,371 22,282

ZERNESBRATIATFE - I —&iR60
RAHRFE - BNESRRZEHEERE
NEEE

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 60-day terms. The carrying amounts of the trade
payables approximate to their fair values.

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EtEARHEMESTIE
Group Company
rEH b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —_TTNEF ZB-ZEF —TTNF
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'o00 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Accrued expenses RETRX 3,008 3,212 126 25
Other payables H At /1B 7,402 8,828 - -
10,410 12,040 126 25

HA A RETI A E - FHHRAME
Ao FEETE M R EAM RN R 2 BRmE(E 8
HRAFEMEE -

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of two months. The carrying amounts of accruals and other
payables approximate to their fair values.
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27.

28.

-z

WARRANTY PROVISION 27. REARE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
us$'ooo Us$'000
Group rEH FER FET
At beginning of year RE ] 1,154 9,365
Additional provision (Note 6) M (5T 6) 77 3,903
Amounts utilised during the year FANSAHEHE (1.401) (10,441)
Exchange realignment [E H K 170 (1,673)
At end of year RELR - 1,154

The Group offers warranties on certain of its consumer electronic
products, for periods of 12 months from the date of purchase by
end customers or 15 months from the date of manufacture. The
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated based
on historical warranty claim experiences and recent trends. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

BALANCE OF CONSIDERATION PAYABLE FOR

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 30 April 2010 and 2009, the balance of consideration payable
of approximately US$1,149,000 represented the estimated amounts
payable for the acquisition of Dowry Peacock and its subsidiaries.

The carrying amount of the balance of consideration payable for
acquisitions of subsidiaries approximates its fair values.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 14 May 2010,
4,074,635 ordinary shares of US$0.02 each of the Company were
issued at a price of HK$2.284 (equivalent to US$0.29) per share to
settle the balance consideration for the acquisition of 60% equity
interest in Dowry Peacock.

TEEH AERMARAT

28.

AEERHEETEPZETETEMEMHR
®E - RAPSHEKKBEEERE AR
st12f8 Ak i B BIEERH15(E A - (R
BZERIREBERARELRIA LA
HIBBIEMGE - Bt 2 EEGRBEEE
T AR AT R E B B E R EET o

WIEH B LR 2 B R ERE

RZE—ZEERFTTNFHA=TH "
JE < X {8 4 58 491,149,000% 7T - & W EE
Dowry Peacock X E I8 A R AT FE 1 2 {& 5T

T e

WHEKB AR 2 BN EREZREER
HAFEREE -

RBERRE RZZE—ZTFRA+M
B AR a %S %2284 T (18 5 120.29
ETT) ZBH& 3 174,074,6358 AN A 7 & %
A{E0.023E T 2 E A - LB UREEDowry
Peacock 600 % ANz 2 KB ERER ©
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29. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

29. EEENKEF

2010 2009
—s-®F  -—TTNE
Note Us$'000 us$'o00
Group rEH L FER FET
Defined benefit plan EREENEE (a) 875 782
Other long term post-employment benefits  E{th K EiE B R KEF (b) 379 410
1,254 1,192
Notes: B3
(a) Defined benefit plan () EFEE R

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying
employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits at 3% of final salary on attainment of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged to
pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death, post-
employment benefits based on the number of years of services and final
average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 30 April
2010 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable to its employees
in Taiwan.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2010 and 2009 by Hsu Mao-
Chin Actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

$%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁA>§T§é?%1E
o IRIBEZATEl - BEESSR
R & 3% 2 BIKEF] ©

=i

B E RN
NERRAEZ

RESEERRESR  AEEAREREREX
NERK  BRXFHAFA 2B WREA

B B IR F I R &R FHH
AEER-_T—TFMA=+

EXTRKBER o

BRaERESRK

BMEEET - RZBEEME -

E%Eafo;’K#"fﬁ@ZFLHHF”TE@ TR=F

*fi)} ThENR=1

B ARRXIEEE

TP RIRA ﬁuf*gﬁgﬁﬁiiﬁtﬁ ®

RBEMRRAZ EZHBEBRROT :

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EThF

[ %

Aot At

Discount rate WA R 2.00 2.25
Expected rate of return on plan assets EIBE ZFBHIORE 2.00 2.25
Expected rate of return on reimbursement right (B HE 2 FEHA[O TR =R N/A T iEF N/A A3 A
Expected rate of salary increases TEHF SRR 2.00 1.00
Future pension increases RIFBERSIBRE N/A FiE R N/A i@ A

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on
the market expectations prevailing as at the end of the reporting period,
applicable to the period over which the obligations are to be settled.

BB E 2 BERTRHMRER DR ENREPRE
FiEANEITRESR 2 SRR MEE -
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29. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 29. EEERKEBF @)

Notes: (Continued) fE « (#8)

(a)  Defined benefit plan (Continued) () EEBFEE ()
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in RERE W R IR sH &I AT ¢
respect of the plan are as follows:

2010 2009

—E-2F —TTHhF

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Current service cost IR B RRIEA AR 38 41
Interest cost FERA 18 22
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 FAHIER (3) (2)
Actuarial gains BE M (5) (5)
Net benefit expenses AR F R 48 56

The Group expects to contribute US$25,000 to its defined benefit plan in

2011.

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as

follows:

AEBRPRN T ——F 2 RERMT AR

25,0003 T °

REBMBEEZREZSHNOT

2010 2009

—E-2F —EThF

Us$'000 US$'000

FEr FEx

At beginning of year REF] 743 852

Current service cost B R A 38 41

Interest cost B 18 22

Actuarial losses/(gains) on obligation EAZEEEBE () 97 (32)

Benefits paid BRI - (49)

Exchange difference fEHZ58 69 (91)

At end of year RFR 965 743
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: HEEEZ A EEEWOT

2010 2009

—E-FTF —ZTThEF

US$'000 Us$'000

FERr FET

At beginning of year REL] 112 96

Expected return T8 HA 215 (3) (2)

Actuarial gains on obligation EEZEEWR 5 5

Contributions by the Group AEE K 24 75

Benefits paid BRI - (49)

Exchange difference &N Z58 10 (13)

At end of year RER 148 112

“T2FEFR MEEEERQA
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29. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

A reconciliation of the fair value of the plan assets and the present value
of the defined benefit obligations to the net value of assets and liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

29. EEENKRER @

MicE - (8

(a)

EEERE (F)

AHEEEATERAEENAETREERESH
BN R ER 2 BERBEFEZHERNT ¢

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EThF

US$'000 Us$'o00

FEx FET

Fair value of plan assets FrEIEECZ ATE (148) (112)

Present value of defined benefit obligations AERAEEZEE 965 743

817 631

Unrecognised net actuarial gains RERBEW TR 58 151

Net liabilities arising from defined benefit obligations ~ RERAMETELE 2 BEFRE 875 782
The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund administered ReEzZAERIERIA—RABNERZE

by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of plan assets as

a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of the centrally

administered fund are as follows:

SEH - FFEIBETERFIERTREERES
FrEIBERBEAFEIBEDLIT

2010 2009

—B-ZF —ETNEF

[ %

Bt Aok

Equity instruments BRATER 41 n
Debt instruments BEIA 26 12
Deposits TR 33 41
Others Hith - 36

A five-year summary of the present value of the defined benefit obligations,

the fair value of the plan assets, the deficit in the plan and the experience

adjustment arising on plan liabilities is as follows:

RERBNEERE - FHEIEE

RFE - FHEIEA

M8l A E2RBAR L AFHENT

2010

2009 2008 2007 2006
—¥-%F —TTNF —TTN\F -TTLF -—TEAF

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FET F=T FE7T FET

Present value of defined benefit FREREH
obligations HEEHRE 965 743 852 873 1,081
Fair value of plan assets SFEEEQAFE (148) (112) (96) (58) (32)
Unrecognised actuarial gains AMERIEE U 58 151 140 112 81
Deficit in the plan FTEIEAL 875 782 896 927 1,130
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 512 & & < K8 A% - - - - -

Other long term post-employment benefits ) HitEHESEKER

The balance represents provision for long service payment as required by
certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when employment

is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee

accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

BERTIIEE T BARERMER
B RIEBMNMERELES

SR B R R R I SR

Fxft e

Linmark Group Limited

ZHEMRE S
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30.

31.

SHARE CAPITAL

30. A

Shares B 2
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: SETE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000/%
US$0.02 each FRMEE0.02ZE T2
LA 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRER
674,994,644 (2009: 674,994,644) ordinary 674,994,644 (—ZT N4
shares of US$0.02 each 674,994,644) B EH%
H{H0.02%& T2 L% 13,500 13,500
Note: Bzt -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 14 May 2010, 4,074,635 ordinary
shares of US$0.02 each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$2.284
(equivalent to US$0.29) per share to settle the balance consideration for the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in Dowry Peacock. As a result, the fully paid and
issued capital of the Company increased to 679,069,279 ordinary shares of US$0.02
each.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme") are included in Note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution of
the then sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
up to 2012. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Company's board
of directors or a committee thereof may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price per
share of at least the higher of (i) the closing price of a share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer of the relevant option; and (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer, provided that the exercise
price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one
share. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
grant of options. The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme to be adopted by
the Company from time to time must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the share capital of the Company in issue from time to time.
The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the share options in cash.

“TRFEFR MEEEERQA

RFEHERE  R=T—ZFRA+TEA - AREERE
f%2.2847 7T (4B E 100293 JT) Z B 1% 3£ 174,074,635%
ARAEREME02E T2 EiMAR - LAE 1 I BEDowry
PeacockHI600% IR AN a2 KB #ARE - Bt » NAFIZHK
B R B BT AN 679,069,27908 T A E H0.02E T 2
ELimAR o

fB IR
ARBEZFERERTE (TR &8l]) &18
N M ERE

31. BREFTE
BREAE IR _ZEZ_FOWA=-+_H
BIEE R — IR BE 2 R
FTEEMNERBIMHEERATHAE
B oS e 2 ER o BRRAEEE
—EHAK BT ——F | AHt+E-
BIEBRESE ARAIEETRESE
EerEERER TEERALIURER
REED - BRRBEEZE D B)H R PTEM
ZEBRWRMERMIARA —RERMHRE
PR ENLEBE B 2 W E - (i)
REBEMZBARMERAIANRRRE
BB AEE B 2 &kH FHkm
B (UAREERE)  EITEEERDMAT
BER—BERHDZEE 2B RALTRE
MBI R B REVET - RIRERE
B RARRA TRA 2 EREMETEIE
BREERRITEZERETERAETZ
BHBRE  THREBEARNRNEE TR
7K 23000 ° AR BN £ AR B HE TE B AT AR
& B[Ol k(BT BE AR o
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. BRAEFTE @

The movements in share options under the Share Option Scheme ITRENBIRIETEIET 2 BIREZS

during the year were as follows:

2010 2009
—E-=f —ETThF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price  of options exercise price of options

hn#EFg niEFS
TEE BRERE T1RE BREHE
HK$ per share '000 HK$ per share ‘000
BTER T4 BITTERR T
At beginning of year RF ) 0.585 54,308 0.830 37,381
Granted during the year REANBFEH 0.700 6,853 0.164 20,000
Lapsed during the year RERE KK 0.824 (14,650) 0.830 (3,073)
Cancelled during the year PERNDTHE 0.830 (4,856) - -
At end of year RELK 0.491 41,655 0.585 54,308

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have

AT B E R HARTTE BRI Z 1T

the following exercise periods and exercise prices: HRATR(E -
2010 —F-FF
Number of
options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE" 1TES
‘000 HK$
) BT
15,421 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
“EENFNACAHNEE-ZE-=FN\A=t+=H
20,000 0.164 12 January 2010 to 11 January 2015
—E-ZF-A+t-HE-Z2-HF-A+—-H
6,234 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015
—E-EFN\A-T+HERE-F-HFNA=-1+HEA
41,655
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. BREFTE @

2009 —ZETNF
Number of
options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
WRENE SRITEE T
'000 HK$
T4 BT
34,308 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
ZEEN\FNAZTHEBEZZE—=F N \HA=Z+=H
20,000 0.164 12 January 2010 to 11 January 2015
—E-EFE-A+RE_ZT-HF—HA+—H
54,308

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
approximately US$150,000 (equivalent to HK$0.17 each) (2009:
US$171,000, equivalent to HK$0.0668 each).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

* T AN A BIAR AN AR A (AR sl BT TAL AR ok EL b JR A8
B BRIEZITTEERERERE o

FAEDEREZ QT E 41500005
T (HERERI7TET) (ZEE N F:
171,000 7T * HERFH0.06687T) °

ERBEAZERBREZ A FENERNA
Nr—sFBHAEEREARE L B BER
it WAt RZEBRERD ZHR - TK
SR AZEARENBAIRR

24 August 4 November 25 August
Date of grant 2007 2008 2009
—ERLHF —BENF —E2NF
B NA=+mWmA +—AmA NA=t+EH
Share price at date of grant REL AR ZRE
(HK$ per share) (FRBTT) 0.830 0.164 0.700
Weighted average share price I HARE
(HK$ per share) (FRAT) 1.00 0.48 0.25
Expected volatility (9) T8 5% 1 (o) 37.97 82.16 165.11
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 3 [ ) 3K (0)o) 4.16 1.74 1.55
Expected life of options (year) BERSHE 2 TEETHARR (4F) 3.51t0 4.5 3.7 t0 5.7 3.5t0 4.5
Dividend yield (%) & B K (0)) 432 432 8.89
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 41,655,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 41,655,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately US$833,000 and share
premium of approximately US$1,795,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 40,580,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 6% of the Company's
shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59 of
the financial statements.

3l

32.

BT S

BE Y AR R ERESEIRES
BEHE ABRRTEEZTHEE
& BN IE RO TR - BBEKE
BAKRKBE 2 IIZE - APRREBRER

B4 1 B AR B 45 o B A\ A T (8
2t ES .

RREER - AR R AHIREBRE S
o T 18] AR AT 2 B AR RE 2 41,655,00017 © fis]
BTN IBIREEREITE - AIREBEARAA
WMITZBEARERE  HEEHARQEAREIN
FX1741,655,0000% TAX - MR KR HD &
B I8 Bl 3 50 #9833,0003% 7T & #71,795,000
X7 (RBRETER) °

R ERMEREBE AR ERE
BB IR AT 81 3% ik oK AT (F 2 BE AR
40,580,0001% * (R AR AINZ B B 17D
Z #6% o

e

(a) AKH
AEERAEERBEFE BES
ERASD 2T RIHRE Es0H 2
GAMNBEE -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

32. &

(b) Company (b) ARATF
Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed  Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus  earnings Total
-
ROREE BRERE RERE HHE% RKEEN CH
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
MisE Fxr FER FER O FERT O TER O TER
Balance at 1 May 2008 RZZTN\F
hA—-B&F 21,632 582 48 9,946 3,539 35,747
Total comprehensive income ~ F/E
for the year e ONE - - - - 8,663 8,663
Equity-settled share option  MARRES 2
arrangements BRER S 3 - 171 - - - m
Share options lapsed FERNEHZ
during the year B - (413) - . 43 -
At 30 April 2009 R=BEnF
MA=t+R&#E 21,632 340 48 9946 12615 44,581
Balance at 1 May 2009 RZZTNE
TA-B&ER 21,632 340 48 9,946 12,615 44581
Total comprehensive income ~ F/E
for the year e ONCE - - - - 1439 1439
Equity-settled share option AR A2
arrangements D Er 3 - 150 - - . 150
Share options lapsed| cancelled MK /7 ik
during the year B - (195) - - 195 -
Final 2009 dividend paid BENZSTNE
KBRS - - - - (1,909) (1,909)
Interim 2010 dividend paid ENZZE-ZF
PHIR S, 14 - - - - (651) (651)
At 30 April 2010 R-B-Zf
MA=tRER 21,632 295 48 9946 11689 43,610
Representing: I
2010 “Z-TF
Final dividend proposed REARSRE 14 - - - - 655 -
Special dividend proposed RRRRIRE 14 - - - - 5237 -
Others Hity - - - - 5,797 -
- - - - 11,689 -

“T2FEFR MEEEERQA
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Company (Continued)

The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation, over the nominal value of
the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is distributable to equity holders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

32. &

(b)

ARQF (&)

RAB 2 ERBARERIEZEAMKE
ZHBR B RGN 2 A EBRARE
AR T AMBIT B EELZ
ZH - REARE-NN—F27
% ARRIZEHBHARE AT D IK
THERFAA - A NRAFET
BATEE RSN R EHEESA
BAPER DR - ()RR EE AR
HzafE  kiHEEEZAIR2REE
PREBEREBETRAA RN &
Bk 4R -

33. HE—XKEAF

2009
—EENEF
Note us$'o00
B aE FET

Net assets disposed of: EHEZEETE :
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 18
Tax recoverable AT Y EI R IR 25
Trade payables e 8 SRR (39)
Accruals and other payables FEET B R T2 B fh FE A~ 308 (3)
1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBA Rzl 6 102
103

Satisfied by: ATFI3 A

Cash RE 103

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

EHE-—RMBARBBAIRERREF
BEBZRAFEIFTOT

2009
—ETENF
Us$'000
FET
Cash consideration and net inflow of cash and  HEREBENELE—FRMNBARBBEZE SN
cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of WEEEERZ
a subsidiary MAFRE 103
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34. LIQUIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

34. — KRB EERE

2010

—Z2-2F

Note Us$'000

B 5E FEx

Net assets liquidated: BB EEFME

Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB KR 210
Intangible asset mEE 52
Inventories FE 2,201
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 M B b AR K 9,546
Tax recoverable AT EI IR 550
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER 3,289
Trade and other payables FENE 5 R EMREK (19,279)
(3,431)
Exchange reserve realised B o [ (1.824)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —RMBRAREEZ W= 6 5,255

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the liquidation of a subsidiary is as follows:

H-FZMBARBREBZASLEAES
BRE 2R FEIMT

2010
=
US$'000
FEx
Cash and bank balances and net outflow of RERBITEHRRE-—KIBRARERER L
cash and cash equivalents in respect of ReERkBLEFEER 2
the liquidation of a subsidiary TR EE (3.289)
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

FREE
RBERR  RUBREARREBZL
REBEWT :

Group Company
rEEH b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F _—_TTNEF ZB-ZF —TTNF
US$'000 US$'000 USs$'000 US$'000
FERT FET FTER FET
Guarantees given to banks BERTFUTEHZ
in connection with facilities EhE mmIRITIEL 2
granted to: R
Subsidiaries )= PNG| - - 32,853 32,853

As at 30 April 2010, the banking facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
US$11,648,000 (2009: US$5,484,000).

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36.
The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters,
furniture and equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2010, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

R-ZT—ZTEMA=+H  REAQIFMA
BITER ZERMBE THB A R Z BT 8
& D W E) A 411,648,000k T (Z B E £
£ : 5,484,000 7T) °

REHERH
AEBREEERERHMAEE FHA
=B BIGS RARRE %ZH
ExHY AERLZGERREOENSE
CENCE

RZZT—ZTFWA=+H XEERET
ARG ZEHER T BB B N2 RE

follows: =EESHKIEAT :

Office premises

and staff quarters Furniture and equipment
WAEEBNREIRS BB KRB
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —_TINF ZF-BF ZTTNF
US$'000 US$'000 USs$'000 US$'000
Group rEH FER FET FER FET
Within one year —FR 1,918 1,506 143 140
In the second to fifth years, E_EZERF

inclusive (BHEEERE) 922 2,047 86 218
After five years HFEMNE - 32 - -
2,840 3,585 229 358

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating
lease arrangements.

132
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37. COMMITMENTS 37. &iE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note B = SCHfEE3eprat 2 &2 & M E A ESN - A
36 above, the Group had the following capital commitments for TREASERNHEARBBEYE K5
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at the end of the R B ANAETE

reporting period:

2010 2009
—®-8F  —TTNH
US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH FEx FET
Contracted, but not provided for BRI #E R E - -
Authorised, but not contracted for BROEERETH 3 98
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any REE IR - N2 B W EIES E] & A&
capital commitments. -
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EREALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) MAFBEREEMBHOAAZRS
these financial statements, the Group had the following N NEBFARNEFREEATETIN
transactions with related parties during the year: TR :
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions Note 2010 2009
EBEALTERE REHE B aE —E-ZF —ETNEF
US$'000 US$'000
FEnr FET
Sky Fame Group Limited Rental expense (i) 128 128
HEEEABRAR Hem%
Ken Ball Limited Rental expense (i) 52 208
BHBRA R Mefx
Raymond Anthony NUGENT Rental expense (iii) 9 39
HeMx
DGC GmbH Royalty income (iv) - 62
EFRA
DGC GmbH Inspection income (iv) - 54
BERA
Vigor International (H.K.) Limited Commission income (v) - 43
FEER (%) BRAR Ba A
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Sky Fame Group Limited is 100% owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a
director of the Company, and his spouse. The rental expense was
determined based on the market rate and floor area.

Ken Ball Limited is 100% owned by Mr. Peter Loris SOLOMON, a former
director of the Company. Rental expense was determined based on
the market rate and floor area.

Mr. Raymond Anthony NUGENT is a director and a holder of 30%
interest of Dowry Peacock, a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company.

DGC GmbH was 64% owned by Mr. Raymond Anthony NUGENT, a
director of Dowry Peacock which is a 60% owned subsidiary of the
Company, up to 16 March 2009. Thereafter, Mr. Nugent ceased to
have interest in DGC GmbH. The royalty income was received in
accordance with the terms of agreement made between the parties.
The inspection income was determined based on the rate agreed by
both parties.

Vigor International (H.K.) Limited is 100% owned by Roly International
Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of the Company. The
commission income was received based on the terms of agreement
made between the parties.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

38. EREALRS &)

(@) (&)
GEX

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REEEERARNABEREEL (AR
AER) REET2EHAZAR - AE
RAxh2EZmERS REEHEEE

XBERAR A —HMBAARARAMES
Peter Loris SOLOMONSt £ 2 B H A 2 A
Ale eI Ne2EmERASKERR
BET -

Raymond Anthony NUGENT4E 4= ADowry Peacock
(RARERWER B RA]) 2 EF
R A E 300t B A ©

DGC GmbHHEIRaymond Anthony NUGENT%C
& (R A Bl 60%0# &5 2 M B X FlDowry
PeacockZ EE) R 64NEREE—TT
NE=A+7<H ° L& * Nugent’EETH
DGC GmbHAH FEE s - FAIEMAR
BRET A& 5 5T 3 2 17 & 1 R i YL ER © &
BWARBES BE 2 WBXREE -

EEBEIER (F8) ERARA/ARREHER
BREFRBEEZEEERABL2EREZ
RE - BEBWARIRE TS FT L2 ook 5
M HLER o

b) AEEIBERABZFHM

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

US$'000 us$'o00

FEx FET

Short term employee benefits HHEBEREA 1,160 1,388

Post-employment benefits RIREA

- defined contribution plans — TR E 63 51

Share-based payments VARR 19 R EEHE TR 46 76
Total compensation paid to key TRFEBEEAEZ

management personnel FiNazEs 1,269 1,515

Further details of directors' emoluments are included in Note

9 to the financial statements.

EEHM o FBRRT B REM O -

Linmark Group Limited annual report 2010



39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. R I AER

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group

Financial assets

# 5
SRERE

SRR TARNBFERRZEmMELT

Available-for-sale

Loans and receivables financial asset Total
EXREWE AHHESHEE ChHi
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
SB-BF AR SR-RF CTTAF ZE-BF CTTAR
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
i3z FEx TEL FER FET TER FET
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ FJtHELREE 17 - - 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables EWE FEED 22 5,324 18,239 - - 5,324 18,239
Financial assets included in STABRTE
prepayments, deposits and other &4 [ L U FIE
receivables JEREE 7100 6,561 - - 7,100 6,561
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHLZEER 24 20,953 23,674 - - 20,953 23,674
33,377 48,474 84 84 33,461 48,558
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BREBERRYRzZe/MAE
2010 2009
—E-E5F —ETNF
Note Us$'oo0 Us$'oo0
5 FER FET
Trade payables BITE SR 25 5,371 22,282
Financial liabilities included in accruals and STAESERLEM
other payables ERNZRE SHEE 26 7,402 8,828
Dividend payable to a minority shareholder of BT —KHIE A Al
a subsidiary DERREH 7 AR B - 742
12,773 31,852
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136

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. €@ T E¥A (4
(Continued)
Company b YN
Financial assets THMEE

Loans and receivables

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's short term interest-bearing
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risks.

B R EWRRIE
2010 2009
—EB-=F ZZETNF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
Pt aE FEx FET
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERFIE -
deposits and other receivables Re N H MR IE
ZEREE 23 - 1
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 24 2,293 2,319
2,293 2,320
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have RMERR - ARRWEE(IESHELE -
any financial liability.
40. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. AFEREBR
As at 30 April 2010, the fair value of the available-for-sale NR-ZZE—FTEMA=1+H AltHESHE
financial asset of US$84,000 was measured based on quoted prices B E 2 N F1{E 584,0005% 7T Ji iR IEHEE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. BEMERMBSAZHRE (RERAR) mat
=
1. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. Bi#REREEBEZERBE

AEENTIESRIABEREARES
BIEA - ZEEeMIANTEANDAR
SENXBEEES - AKETARTRER
teRmEENARE NEEHAEELE
EENRKRESERNENEZRERE

AEENERTAMEENEZAR ST
KRR INERR EERBRERDES
R -ZEFeRIkBEEEESEZSRA

BEVBOR - &R e
2@k

AEEAZOMSHNREBERERER
SERF BN G BRITFREM -

74 85 B3 T 37 4 ) S B 00 A
RIEES -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit/(loss) before tax (through the

1. BRERESEEERBE @

F =@ B ()

TRTFPEMEEMESRIFTTIENENR
T REBRKREIDER (E18) CEBY
FEREENTE)  HERITEARAEE

impact on floating rate borrowings) and interest-bearing bank MR M R I A L B BN RO BN ©
deposits and the Group's equity.
2010 2009
—E-%F —TTNE
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in
basis points profit before tax

(decrease) in (decrease) in

loss before tax

2E BRELATER FRIELRIES 1R

#gm,CEL) & CRL)  #8in CFid)

USs$'000 Us$'000

Group rEE FEx FET

United States dollar eSS 50 105 (119)

United States dollar ETT (50) (105) 119
Foreign currency risk St = B

The Company's functional currency is the United States dollar
and the functional currencies of majority of the subsidiaries
are the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group's
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables are mainly
denominated in these two currencies.

As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign exchange
risk in this respect is not significant. The Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held
in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

“2-TEEH MEEEERAR

ARBNNEERBET - RENMER
AINNEEE ST RET - AREHR
5 RREZEANENE SRR EZN
bt mEE®IE -

MRETEBTTE R - SULEEER
RHMERBRI AEBEKX - REBERBINER
BREETIRE  MAKEFEEFTEEINE
BERER - AW BRBINERZFINE
R AEY AEAX - BHAKE R AT &R
RS INERR ©

AEEEE BRI RTRBTIAINE B
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale financial
asset, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has certain concentration of credit risk on the Group's
trade receivables, as the amounts due from the largest five debtors
amounted to approximately US$1,732,000 (2009: US$6,061,000),
representing 32.5% (2009: 33.2%) of the Group's trade receivables.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management continuously
monitors the level of exposure to ensure that follow-up actions
are taken promptly to reduce the risk exposure or to recover
overdue balances. The Group will also continuously exploit new
opportunities and forge relationships with new customers with the
aim of broadening its clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 22
to the financial statements.

41.

HREREEEERBE &)

EERRE
AEERSEERAREERMNEZT
RP  ARBRRAEMARABEEYR
FNEPEETERERZER - 1o K
SEHEREERRUWHIBEAS At A%
BAZHERARL AEAX -

AEEEMEREE (BRASKREF
BEE AHLESHEE BREZK
R FREEMEEFIER) 2EERR T
KEHAHTREBREZHIE  MaRKERE
RI%ETIAZKREME -

HRAEEReELRA REERIFNE
=hER5 FTUAEARERER - EER
SHETERRER /HFH  hERTT
EREE - NREBR AEBREKRE
SEREAE TERAENEERR @ BU
A ARE P RIEL,73200EF T (ZZEE A
F 16,061,000 7L) * HAEEEKE SR
A HI32.5% (Z T ZJLF :33.2%) ° & T &k
BEERK BEEEFEZEREARKRKTE -
VAR (R BN RS BBV R 2 77 2+ Rk 1K R B
- Bmm SR o REBMNIGESYD
EHEg THITFEYBER  UWHRE
BEER -

FHAEEREREZEREENEER
BREVE — P BB I WS M 228

?go
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contracted undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

41.

BREREEEEREE @)

AEBENEREEROMARITERE &
Bom@EHERETE Mg TE -

RIFCDFTAEM RN RO MO AR E R R
SRz eRABINHBERNAT :

Within one year

—FR

2010 2009

—E-FF ZETNF

US$'000 US$'000

Group AEE FEx FET

Trade payables FERTE SR 5,371 22,282
Financial liabilities included P AFERHE R R H A R

in accruals and other payables FEZEMEE 7,402 8,828

Dividend payable to a minority JE — KM B A E] D8
shareholder of a subsidiary % Bz A % B - 742
12,773 31,852

At 30 April 2010, the utilised banking facilities of US$11,648,000
(2009: US$5,484,000) granted to the subsidiaries subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company is repayable on
demand.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 April 2010 and 30
April 2009.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders'
equity.

“2-TEEH MEEEERAR

R-ZZE-—ZTEMA=+0 - WERQFERF
MUARRBMRITIERRZEBARITE
£11,648,0003% 7T (= & T A, 4 : 5,484,000
ETT) BIRERKER o

BEXER
AEEEAEENETERGRRERASKH
REFELENMMEBRENERLE  NUX
REXBLEERERREE-

AEBRBEEERNNEHEREHERNRE
REHRETHE BREFIABELAR
B AEETREAERYRFRE RS
ABRREEEAKBITHER  EREEE
AZBE BRIBFRBEE_ZT—ZTF
MA=+RAR-_ZEZAFEOA=THIHF
ER AR EE -

AEBENBREBRRERD ZFABKN
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42.

43.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 May 2010, 4,074,635 ordinary shares of US$0.02 each of
the Company were issued at a price of HK$2.284 (equivalent to
US$0.29) per share to settle the balance consideration for the
acquisition of 60% equity interest in Dowry Peacock, as further
detailed in Note 28 to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 15 July 2010.

42.

43.

WEHBREE
RZZE—ZFRATHEHAB ' XRAZEER
228478 7L (B FE 1R029%k T) 2 B R #1717
4,074,635/ AN N BB AR EI(H0.023 T 2 L i
% » BAB Uk BEDowry Peacock 6000 A% 2N 4
mZ REHRTE  EEFBERRTBRENR
5128 ©

BEMBRE

E=ZeCR _Z-ZFLATHBEHER
RERMP B RS -
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5-Year Financial Summary
HFMBME

RESULTS e

Year ended 30 April
BEMA=TALEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZZTRE TTAF ZTT\F ZTTNF ZB-BF
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000  US$'000
TET T T%=n e e

REVENUE Wz 288,322 383,583 289,707 195,762 93,526
Cost of sales HEMAR (229923)  (329,897)  (260,109)  (159,823)  (67,200)
Gross profit EH 58,399 53,686 29,598 35,939 26,326
Other income HilgA 1,787 2,593 2,594 1,846 2,472
General and administrative expenses —BRITBFEY (50,521) (45,925) (39,855) (33309)  (25,647)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —ZMBARER W - - - - 5,255
Loss on deregistration of branches AREBERM 2 BB - - - - (1,036)
Restructuring costs SHER - - - (1,719) (1,362)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREER - (2,494) (3,000) (3,000) -
Impairment loss on purchase consideration  AJYREIEERERIE

recoverable BB - (5,699) - - -
Impairment loss on patents and trademarks — Z7| & B 1ZiF(EE 18 - (51,529) (10,254) (10,137) -
Write-back of purchase consideration payable JEfTUEE L BR T - 21,469 - - -
Excess of interest in fair value of acquired ~ AEAMBATEEZELTEN

subsidiaries' net assets over cost BEm RN 2 5 3,397 - - - -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKMB A Az Y - - - 102 -
Operating profit/(loss) s/ (B8) 13,062 (27899)  (20917)  (10278) 6,008
Interest income FMEWA 814 905 598 149 53
Finance costs HBER (549) (1,164) (418) (52) -
Share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity — [E{E—RIHREHIBE 2 BB (49) (53) (45) 4) 4)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEATET(BE) 13,078 (28211)  (20782)  (10,185) 6,057
Income tax (expense)/credit s (A%, K (2,763) (2,659) 365 (2,069) (138)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREEF /(B8) 10,515 (30,870) (20,417) (12,254) 5,919
Attributable to: WT&T L -

Owners of the Company NABEA A 10,444 (11,062) (12,789) (8,350) 5919

Non-controlling interest IR 71 (19,808) (7,628) (3,904) -

10,515 (30,870) (20,417) (12,254) 5919

Dividends e 4829 3,679 - 1,891 6,543
Earnings/(loss) per share (US cents) BIREF /(FE) (L)
Basic BN 16 (1.7) (1.9) (1.2) 0.9
Diluted i 16 (1.7) NATER NATER 0.9
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5-Year Financial Summary
RFRBUE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

Year ended 30 April

REB=+E
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“TERNF —TTLF —TINF —TENF ZBE-BfF
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000
FEn TEx Txx TExx TR
Non-current assets ErRBHEE 116,855 61,246 47,309 28,042 27,312
Current assets TEEE 92,610 78,677 56,320 51,662 33,768
Total assets EEHE 209,465 139,923 103,629 79,704 61,080
Current liabilities MEAE (85,799) (62,991) (49,922) (39,510)  (18,701)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (18,889) (2,627) (1,189) (1,192) (1,254)
Total liabilities BERE (104,688) (65,618) (51,111) (40702)  (19,955)
Net assets BEEZE 104,777 74,305 52,518 39,002 41,125
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Corporate Information
NEER

Executive directors

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman)

Michel BOURLON (Chief Executive Officer)
KHOO Kim Cheng

Non-executive director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Audit committee

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Company secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
1123, Hongkong International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal share registrar and transfer office
HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited

(with effect from 3 May 2010)

(formerly known as The Bank of Bermuda Limited)

6 Front Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer

office

Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Auditors

Ernst & Young

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
NEEH

Principal bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Level 10, HSBC Main Building,

1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
13th Floor, Standard Chartered Bank Building,
4-4A Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Citibank, N.A.
48th Floor, Citibank Tower, Citibank Plaza,
3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong
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Shareholder Information
IR R E R

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002

Stock Code : 915

Board Lot : 2,000

Par Value : US$0.02

Trading Currency : HK$

Financial calendar 2010
Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Ex-dividend date for final

and special dividends
Register of members closed

Annual general meeting

30 April 2010
15 July 2010

23 August 2010

25-27 August 2010

27 August 2010

isiil . H-ZEE-_FHA+HE
REBHERZER AR
FIRET

AR+ 915

EEBEMN  : 2000

HE ©0.02ETT

RH5E%E - AR

—E-EERBTERE

Record date for final
and special dividends
Despatch of dividend warrants

27 August 2010
on or about 8 September 2010

Interim results to be announced mid of December 2010*

*

subject to change

Dividends

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 0.75 HK cent per
share and a special dividend of 6 HK cents per share in respect of the year
ended 30 April 2010. Subject to shareholders' approval, the final and special
dividends will be paid in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 27 August 2010.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about
Wednesday, 8 September 2010.

In order to determine the entitlements to the final and special dividends
in respect of the year ended 30 April 2010, the register of members will be
closed from Wednesday, 25 August 2010 to Friday, 27 August 2010, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special dividends,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar not
later than 4.30 p.m. on Tuesday, 24 August 2010.

Shareholder services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile:  (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share
registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Linmark Group Limited
1123, Hongkong International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2753 7373
Facsimile:  (852) 2721 6554
Email: ir@linmark.com
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